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Chairman’s Statement
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS:

On behalf of the board (the “Board"”) of the directors (the "“Directors”) of Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”),
I'am glad to present the results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008.

RESULTS

The Group has recorded the revenue of approximately RMB947,710,000 (2007: RMB9 19,945,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2008, which was increased by 3.0% from the revenue of
2007. Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent was approximately RMB 102,037,000
(2007: RMB101,072,000) which was approximate to last year. The increase in revenue was
mainly due to the growth in the Group’s system specific medicine business. In the 5 years since
the Group’s listing, the Group has been persisting in the expansion of its penetrating strength in
cardiovascular system specific medicines market and focusing on establishing expert network
and academic promotion. Therefore, our market share of system specific medicine has been
further expanded. This did not only increase the Group's sales volumes, but it also improved
the gross profit margin of the Group as a whole, as well as further optimized the structure of
products. In addition, the Group adhered to the financial principle of tight cost control, and
continued to optimize technologies of the manufacturing process, as such, production cost was
further reduced. Under the current economic environment of credit crisis and financing difficulties
caused by financial crisis which the world is facing, the Group has managed to maintain healthy
and stable financial structure. For the year ended 31 December 2008, all the development
projects of the Group have been funded by its own sufficient capital resources.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to declare a final dividend of HK$0.040 per share for the year ended 31
December 2008, approximately amounting to the total sum of HK$3 1,157,000 (approximately
equivalent to RMB27,477,000).

Taking into consideration of the interim dividend of HK$0.018 per share, the total annual dividend
distributed for the year is HK$0.058 per share. The dividend payout ratio is approximately 40%.

OVERVIEW

In 2008, the operation of the Group was affected by various special events, but it was still stable
in general. For example, the overseas export business of the Group grew rapidly in 2006 and
2007. Due to the “anti-dumping” policy of the India market and the strengthening of inspection
by Europe and America on China manufactured foods and drugs, Chinese export enterprises
faced a higher "non-tariff barriers”. As a result, the Group's export business did not perform
satisfactorily in 2008. However, the Group has been improving its technology platform and the
quality control system continuously. Currently the Group is constructing or planning to construct
cephalosporin and system specific medicine manufacturing facilities and production systems
that can meet the American or European standards. It is because the Board believes that the
entry barrier of China’s medicine market will be enhanced in the coming few years. The Group
proactively uses manufacturing equipments and process with the international advanced technologies,
to not only enhance the overall technology platform of the Group but also to enable the Group
to take corporate social responsibility and build up a trust and reliable enterprise brand and
social image in the mindset of the doctors and consumers.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®RS

In general, the development of medicine projects needs capital investment for more than one
year. Our investment decision is formulated based on a long-term orientation and the huge
medicine market of China, but not on the short fluctuation of economic cycle. In fact, the
performance of the medicine industry of China is not positively correlated with the crises of the
US financial industry.

The China market is still in the progress of further institutionalization and systemization. Step by
step, the central government of China is committed to establish a medical insurance system. In
such a progress, the Group will systematically observe and analyze the implementation and
adjustment of national industry policy, which will lead us to launch relevant marketing strategy
with prudence.

We have solid grounds to believe that, enterprises with strong marketing and innovation capability
will have greater opportunities to become the leader of the medicine industry in China. The
Group has always dedicated to establish itself as a "knowledge and technology-intensive”” enterprise,
so as to achieve the aim of refining its core competitive capability. The past history proves that
an enterprise relying simply on increasing productivity may expand its sales volume, but it is
difficult to gain rich gross profit margin and exhibit its dynamic capabilities. Only enterprises
which have in-depth understanding about the market future prospect and have the capability of
launching technological-leading products can outperform competitors in the fierce competition.
Therefore, we shall establish an enterprise that has in-depth understanding about the China’s
market and has leading technology in order to create value and satisfactory return for the
shareholders.

In the markets outside China, we will continue to devote our focus on the regions which have
growth potential, with a strategy to seize the opportunities through establishing cooperative
partnership in those areas.

TALENTED STAFF

The Board has been devoting to develop and recruit talents. Our management team and staff
spreading all over the PRC are always the most valuable intangible assets of the Group and the
essential driving force for the sustainable development of the Group. | would like to take this
opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to the staff of the Group for their dedication and
diligence.

Li Kei Ling
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2009
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

PRODUCTION & SALES OPERATION

The Group had adjusted its product composition according to the market conditions. For the
year ended 31 December 2008, the production and sales volume of bulk medicines decreased
1.6% and 4.9% respectively compared with the corresponding period of last year. The production
volume of powder for injections was increased 2.2% compared with the corresponding period
of last year while the sales volume was almost the same. Production and sales volume of solid-
dosage-forms also increased 12.0% and 15.6% respectively compared with the corresponding
period of last year. Export sales as a percentage to total revenue was approximately 8%, representing
196 decrease compared with the corresponding period of last year.

DEVELOPMENT OF NEW PRODUCTS

In 2008, the Group had applied to the State Food and Drug Administration of the PRC to
register a total of |6 products and 23 events. There were 7 products approved for production
by the State Food and Drug Administration of the PRC, together with 8 production permits
and 3 certificates of new pharmaceutical products granted. In addition, the Group received 10
supplemental production permits for 10 products, 6 clinical trials permits for 4 products. Furthermore,
the Group's had completed 5 products’ clinical trials and engaged in clinical trials for 3 products.

CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS FOR THE EXPANSION OF PRODUCTION FACILITIES

In order to improve the Group's product quality and strengthen its integrated production capacity,
together with fulfilling its social responsibility in terms of environmental protection, every new
construction project and optimizing reconstruction project planned by the Group since 2006
had been successively completed or reached the final stage of equipment installation and
commissioning.

Pharmaceutical Chemical Intermediates

The major production workshop in phase | of Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and
Technology Co,, Ltd. was completed in November 2008. It had achieved successful trial production
and was put into commercial production smoothly.

Suzhou Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd. had basically completed the phase Il works of waste
water treatment systems and strengthened its energy-saving and emission-reduction measures.
This enhanced its ability in protection of community environment.

Bulk Medicines

Civil engineering works of the new bulk medicines workshop of Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
Co,, Ltd had been completed. It had reached the stage of equipment installation and commissioning.
The production line was expected to produce on schedule.

In addition, in response to the new requirements of GMP in China, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. carried out applicable reconstruction work for the existing two bulk medicines workshops.

Pharmaceutical Preparations

In addition to the bulk medicines workshop, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. carried
out applicable transformation for the PRC GMP for its two pharmaceutical preparation workshops
at the same time. Also, the Group implemented production expansion transformation for the
solid pharmaceutical preparation workshop among those workshops, so as to enhance its productivity.

In addition to the above projects, the Group had conducted project studies for the local land
newly acquired by Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and intended to use it for producing
non-cephalosporin bulk medicines and pharmaceutical preparations. The initial design of this
project had been completed and submitted to the local government for approval.

ERoE

EEHERR

AEERETSRRARERLEE  HE_TT/\&F
TZAZt+ - BLEFERHENEENHESFIRE
FRBEMD1.6%K%4.9%  MEHEEREFEER
22% - MIFEERABEFRHT  BARANES R
EERNEFIERI2.0%%15.6%  H O HEELI54
BEESY  REAFRBMA1% -

FERBR

T \FEMENBEREREREEEERFMEA
MentEH16ME - BMFMEE2IE - KR BE7ERE
ESBRREMEREBRTERMELE  EES4ER
1HefE - EHEZEEIE  10EREEERLEE/ T
1018 - AE R TERE RERRARILF6ME  HINER
B 7 SE RV ER R 3T © B 3 0 i IE R E 1T ER IR

% o

MALEERBERER

RRETERES  BEGAEERIIRBETLE
ERERETENLEET  AEER_TTREFE
RABNSERRZRERRECUCEE RO AETR
HEEARMRBLENREAKE -

B TR

i (@) BEMRERAA-HIRATNEESE
EEAR-FTENF+—ARR - SERDLIEFIR
ABEEE -

BRMNRIGC TARAREARTNK T REKEEN BT
18 [ NR A HE BT BE IR BE - AR THR AL R IRIE

ak
BE °

BMNRIGHERRARNRHENEMNLE TR
Ko BEARBREAARR - BIFEESMIZAR
o

Utoh - EEHBEGMPHTESK « /N RInREEF R AR
RREOMERFEERET 7T BRESETIE -

ERR
B ERE RS - M RR AR AR AR AN A
B EEME T T P ECMPERE B THE - ¥
B AR B BRA SR BT MRS - R
27 -

BLt&ERN  AEEERHNRIEHEETRAF
NEHMFBOLMET TRERE BT REEIFE
R EMAE - ZHERNVF R REBL TR
W E BT TR -



Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS

In 2008, the prices of chemical and energy commodities in global market experienced significant
fluctuation. This brought violent fluctuation in the price of every production material and made
it difficult to forecast the trend. The uncertainty in prices of production materials exposed the
pharmaceutical enterprises of China into considerable difficulties in respect of formulating production
plan and cost budget. In response to the difficulties, the Group has devoted proper management
resources and established corresponding risk avoidance measures to control every production
cost in budget, so as to reduce the impact of adverse factors on the Group's business. Despite
in 2008, a series of significant disasters occurred in the PRC, together with the financial crisis of
international society ever encountered in a century, which directly and indirectly affected China’s
economic development, and the downslide of the domestic demand, China’s pharmaceutical
market still grew due to the support of the State's policy that expanded the development room
and fostered a growing operational environment for the pharmaceutical enterprises of China.
The Group has accurately estimated the reform trend of medicine market, strictly adjusted the
production and sales strategy in accordance with budget, improved the enterprise’s management
mechanism, optimized the business model and controlled the construction period of new industrial
platform.

As the Group has mitigated effectively the adverse factors that it was exposed to, the Group
had again captured the opportunities in 2008. Not only the sales results and profits value
recorded good performance, but also the integrated structure of the Group was improved.
This brought new element and solid foundation for the future development of the enterprise.

In January 2009, the Central Government, in principle, passed the views on deepening the
reform of the pharmaceutical and health care system (BARRILEEZEETAREHIRENER)
and relevant implementation schemes for the three year from 2009 to 201 |, which stipulated
the pharmaceutical and health care framework of China and the stage work targets of the next
three years. According to initial estimation, governments at all levels are expected to invest
RMB850 billion within three years to successfully set five reforms, including reform of basic
medical care system. The coverage rate of the basic medical insurance system for urban residents
and the new type of rural cooperative medical care system will be increased to over 90% within
three years of implementing the schemes.

[t is expected that, under the support of medical reform measures, the medicine market's
capacity of China will continue to expand gradually and the demand for basic medicines will
increase simultaneously. We estimate the major products of the Group will be included into
National Basic Drugs Catalogue, which will promote the sales of such products in a more
effective manner.

Benefiting from the measures of medical reform, the pharmaceutical market of China has promising
prospect. The Group sets forth the enterprise’s development in a timely, proper and appropriate
manner, actively reconstructs its product chain and improves its core competitiveness. We
have the ability of and confidence in catering for the new medical system in general and continuing
to maintain good business development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

SALES AND GROSS PROFIT

For the year ended 3| December 2008, the Group has achieved the turnover of approximately
RMB947,710,000, equivalent to an increase of 3.0% compared with the corresponding period
of last year. Gross profit was approximately RMB256,663,000 equivalent to an increase of 7.2%
compared with the corresponding period of last year. Gross profit margin was increased by
I.1% to 27.19% (2007: 26.0%), which was mainly due to the increase in the turnover of powder
for injections and system specific medicines compared with the corresponding period of last
year.

TABLE OF TURNOVER ANALYSIS
Turnover (RMB’000)

Bt %5 [ R
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Sales Breakdown (%)

EEE (ARWT) SHELLBI (%)

Product Em 2008 2007 Changes 2008 2007 Changes

—EENE —ETAF g —EENEF —TTAF g
Bulk Medicines [ EE 548,092 569,279 -21,187 57.83 61.88 -4.05
Powder for Injections A 264,322 239,532 24,790 27.89 26.04 1.85
Solid-Dosage-Forms Bl 135,296 [11,134 24,162 14.28 12.08 2.20
Overall “age 947,710 919,945 27,765 100.00 100.00 0.00
EXPENSES BH

The Group has executed expenses budgeting. With the continuous growth in turnover, the
total expenses incurred during the year increased 10.4% compared with the corresponding
period of last year, making total of approximately RMB 146,019,000, equivalent to 15.4% of
turnover (2007: 14.4%). The increase was mainly because of the increase in promotion and
marketing expenses for the exploitation of China and overseas markets which caused the selling
and distribution costs was increased by [4.7% to approximately RMB79,395,000 compared
with the corresponding period of last year.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

For the year ended 31 December 2008, profit attributable to equity holders of the parent
amounted to approximately RMB102,037,000, which was approximate to last year.

ANALYSIS ON THE RETURN ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2008, net assets attributable to equity holders of the parent were approximately
RMB628,541,000. Net return on net assets, which is defined as the profit attributable to equity
holders of the parent divided by net assets attributable to equity holders of the parent, was
16.2% (2007: 17.5%). The current ratio and quick ratio was 1.76 and 1.30 respectively. Turnover
days for trade and notes receivables was approximately |39 days. The turover days for inventory
was approximately 74 days.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 3| December 2008, the Group held cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB38,936,000 (as at 31 December 2007: RMB76,843,000). During the year, the net cash
inflow from operating activities was approximately RMB97,799,000 (2007: RMB130,551,000).
Net cash outflow from investing activities was approximately RMB82,853,000 (2007:
RMB61,666,000). Net cash outflow from financing activities was approximately RMB50,399,000
(2007: RMB30,645,000).

As at 31 December 2008, the debt ratio (defined as bank advances for discounted bills over
total assets) of the Group was 2.6% (as at 31 December 2007: 0%).

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had aggregate bank facilities of approximately RMB595,000,000
(as at 31 December 2007: RMB543,400,000).

As at 3| December 2008, the Group’s capital commitments amounted to approximately
RMB13,370,000 (as at 31 December 2007: RMB103,859,000), which mainly derived from the
construction of new bulk medicine workshop for cephalosporin products and re-engineering of
old workshop in Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., the plant construction of Dawnrays
(Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd., the construction of multi-functional
workshop and environmental protection projects in Suzhou Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd, etc.
The Group has sufficient financial and internal resources to fund the capital expenditure.

The Group had undertaken restructuring since 2007 by intra-group share transfer among some
of the subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2008, the relevant changing procedures were completed.
Save as aforesaid disclosure and the investment in the subsidiaries, the Group had no significant
external investments or material acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies
during the year.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND TREASURY POLICIES

As the Group's substantial business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in Renminbi,
the risk derived from the foreign exchange to the Group is not high. The treasury policy of the
Group is to manage any risk of foreign exchange (if any) only if it will potentially impose a
significant impact on the Group. The Group continues to observe the foreign exchange market,
and may hedge against foreign currency risk with foreign exchange forward contracts if necessary.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2008, the Group employed 1,657 employees. For the year ended 31
December 2008, the total remuneration was approximately RMB72,050,000 (2007: RMB59, 164,000).
The Group regards human resources as the most valuable assets and truly understands the
importance of attracting and retaining high-performance employees. The remuneration policy
is generally based on the references of market salary index and individual qualifications. The
Group provides its employees with other fringe benefits, including defined contribution retirement
schemes, share option scheme and medical coverage. The Group also offers some of its employees
stationed in the PRC with dormitory accommodation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ERRWE DN

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had no asset being pledged to banks to obtain credit
facilities (as at 31 December 2007: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 3| December 2008, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (as at 31 December
2007: Nil).

PLANS FOR SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND EXPECTED SOURCE OF
FUNDING

Save for those disclosed above in connection with capital commitments under the section
“Liquidity and Financial Resources”, the Group does not have any plan for material investments
or acquisition of capital assets.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in one business segment, the development, manufacture and
sale of medicines, and most of its operations and assets are located in Mainland China. Therefore,
no business segment or geographical segment is presented.

EERMA

RZZEZENF+TZA=+—8  AEEEFEMEEE
AFPRT UBRBEREE(R_ETLF+-R=
T8 ) -

XEEE

RZZEZENF+ZA=+—8B EEBELEERLE
BEMRZTEELF+_A=+—8: )

AREARERAHBMERR

RERRBEE R BER —HRAHAREARX
FEWBEES  ARE BT EEARKERNERE
BB AEAREES -

THEH
AEEEIEEEEER - DR AERBERY
87 MEABIEEEBREEDRNREARE -
Fi - BRI EH D ERBE D HER -

EHEH(RER)ARAD DM



Corporate Governance Report|

ERELGRE

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company") believes that corporate governance is essential to the success of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”). Good corporate governance can
safeguard the interests of all shareholders and enhance corporate value. Therefore, the Board
has adopted various measures to ensure that a high standard of corporate governance is maintained.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all code provisions set out in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code on CGP") contained in Appendix
I4 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the "“Stock Exchange”) for the year ended 3| December 2008.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix |0 of the Listing Rules as the Company's code
of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors. Based on specific enquiry
of all Directors, the Company confirms that all the Directors have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code, throughout the accounting period covered by the 2008
annual report.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and oversees the
Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The management has been delegated
the authority and responsibility by the Board for the management of the Group. In addition, the
Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the board committees. Further details of
these committees are set out in this report.

The Board had 5 regular scheduled meetings for the year ended 31 December 2008 to consider,
among other things, reviewing and approving the interim and annual results of the Group,
overall group strategy, annual budgets, approval of major capital transactions and other significant
operational and financial matters. During the year, ad-hoc meetings were convened when
circumstance required such as reviewing and approving capital expenses for production facilities.
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Details of the attendance of Directors at these regular Board meetings and at three other
board committees’ meetings (the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee) during the year 2008 are set out in the following table:

R-ZT)N\F RESNEHEFEERALAIN=A
EXZ80% (FRZRe RALZBEGLRFMEER
B)NHEFBINEN TR

No. of meetings attended/held

BREEREBTRE
Audit Nomination Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Directors EEHE g EREES REZES FMEES
Executive Directors HITEFE
Ms. Li Kei Ling (Chairman) FHEZL (FE) 5/5 2/2 11
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RERIIESEE 5/5
Mr. Li Tung Ming SO 5/5
Mr. Gao Yi BREE 5/5
Non-executive Director FHNITEE
Mr. Leung Hong Man ZER%E 5/5
Independent Non-executive Directors B IFNTEF
Mr. Pan Xue Tian EEHEE 5/5 3/3 2/2 I/1
Mr. Sik Siu Kwan BRIk 3/5 3/3 212 1/1
Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky BERsE 5/5 3/3 2/2 I/1

At least 14 days notice of regular board meeting is given to all Directors. The agenda and board
papers are sent to the Directors at least 3 days before the meetings of the Board and board
committees so that the Directors have the time to review the documents. Directors can include
matters for discussion in the agenda if the need arises. Minutes of meetings of the Board and
board committees are recorded in sufficient details that matters considered and decisions reached.
The draft and final versions of the minutes will be sent to Directors within a reasonable time
after the meetings. Minutes of meetings of the Board and board committees are kept by the
company secretary of the Company and open for inspection on reasonable notice by any
Director.

All Directors are entitled to have unrestricted access to the advice and service of the company
secretary with a view to ensure that board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed. Upon reasonable request and appropriate circumstances, Directors can seek
independent professional advice to assist them to discharge their duties, at the Company’s
expenses.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board had determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by
holding a board meeting with the presence of disinterested Independent Non-executive Directors
or a meeting of a board committee set up for that purpose pursuant to a resolution passed in
a board meeting.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, of whom four are Executive Directors, one is
Non-executive Director and three are Independent Non-executive Directors. The composition
meets the recommended practice under the Code on CGP for the Board to have at least one-
third in number of its members comprising Independent Non-executive Directors. The three
Independent Non-executive Directors are persons of high caliber, with academic and professional
qualifications in the fields of accounting, business management and pharmaceutical industry
respectively. With their experience gained from senior positions held in other companies, they
provide strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the
Board. The biographies of the Directors are set out in pages 19 to 20 to the 2008 annual
report, which demonstrates the skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.
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The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the three Independent
Non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has
assessed their independence and concluded that all the Independent Non-executive Directors
are independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

Ms. Li Kei Ling, the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Hung Yung Lai, one of the Executive
Director, are directors and ultimate shareholders of several companies incorporated in Hong
Kong and British Virgin Islands.

Save as disclosed above, the Board members have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other. The balanced Board composition is formed to ensure
strong independence exits across the Board which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

The nomination committee will consider the appointment of new Directors first by reviewing
the profiles of the candidates and making recommendations to the Board. New Directors
appointed by the Board during the year to fill a casual vacancy shall retire and submit themselves
for re-election at the first general meeting immediately followed their appointment.

Non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed term of two years and are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election by shareholders at annual general meeting (*AGM") in accordance
with the Company's articles of association (the “Articles”).

At each AGM, one-third of the Directors are required to retire from office according to the
Company's Articles. As the Company has eight Directors, one third of them shall retire subject
to rotation, and barring unforeseen resignation/retirement during a year, each Director is effectively
appointed for an average term of not more than 3 years. Mr. Pan Xue Tian, Mr. Li Tung Ming
and Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky being the longest in the office, will retire at the forthcoming AGM.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director will receive a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on
his first appointment to have a proper understanding of the operations and business of the
Group and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities under statute and common law, the
Listing Rules, applicable legal requirements and other regulatory requirements and the business
and governance policies of the Company. The Directors endeavour to give sufficient time and
attention to the Group's affairs and are continually updated with legal and regulatory developments,
business and market changes and the strategic development of the Group to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities.

The Independent Non-executive Directors take an active role in Board meetings, contribute to
the development of strategies and policies and make sound and independent judgement on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and standard
of conduct. They will take lead where potential conflicts of interests arise. They are also members
of various board committees and scrutinize the overall performance of the Group in achieving
agreed corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance.
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SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION

The management has the obligation to supply the Board and board committees with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable it to make informed decisions on matters placed
before it. Where any Director requires more information than is volunteered by the management,
each Director has separate and independent access to the Group’s management to make further
enquires if necessary. Where queries are raised by Directors, management will respond as
promptly and fully as possible.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman (the “Chairman’) and the chief executive officer (the "CEQ") of the
Company are separated and are performed by two separate individuals who have no relationship
with each other to strike a balance of power and authority so that the job responsibilities are
not concentrated on any one individual. The Board has appointed Ms. Li Kei Ling as the Chairman.
She has executive responsibilities and provides leadership to the Board such as ensuring all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and received complete and
reliable information in a timely manner so that the Board works effectively and discharges its
responsibilities.

Mr. Gao Yi, an Executive Director and the CEO, is delegated with the authority and responsibility
for managing the Group's business operation and implementing the development strategies.
Mr. Gao will present the quarterly results to the Board. Variances analysis between the actual
performances and the budget targets are explained in the meeting. This helps the Board to
monitor the Group’s business operations and to amend the targets when required. He will
periodically present the updated market situation, long term strategies and objectives of the
Group at the Board meeting to ensure all Directors are aware of the targets the Group achieves.
In addition, Mr. Gao will also present the coming year budget summary to the Board for approval
at the Board meeting held in December each year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The management provides explanation and information to the Board so as to enable the Board
to make an informed assessment of the financial and other information put before the approval
by the Board.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial statements for each financial
year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the
interim and annual financial statements, and announcements to shareholders. The Board is not
aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, the Board therefore continues to adopt the going concern approach
in preparing the accounts.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment in the Company's annual and interim reports, other price-sensitive announcement
and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and reports to the regulators as
well as the information required to be disclosed pursuant to the statutory requirements.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has delegated to management the implementation of internal control system as well
as the review of relevant financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk management
procedures.

The internal control system has been designed to safeguard the Group's assets against loss and
misappropriation; to maintain proper accounting records for producing reliable financial information;
to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance against material fraud and errors. The Group
has clearly defined the authorities and key responsibilities of each business and operational unit
to ensure adequate checks and balances. Policies are established to ensure compliance with
applicable laws, regulations, and industry standards. Rules and guidelines are set to control
treasury activities, financial and management reporting, human resources functions and computer
systems’ operations. Systems and procedures are also established to identify, measure, manage
and control different risks arising from different business and functional activities.

The Board monitors and reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of its internal control systems
through a programme of internal audit. The internal audit function is set up by the Company to
review the major operational and financial control of the Group in compliance with the established
processes and standards on a continuing basis and aims to cover all major operations of the
Group on a rotational basis. The internal audit team reports directly to the Chairman of the
Board and the Audit Committee.

The Board also monitors and assesses the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget on an ongoing basis.

Based on the assessments made by the internal audit team in 2008, the Board and the audit
committee of the Company considered that the key areas of the Group’s internal control
system are reasonably implemented with room for improvement. The Group shall use its endeavor
to further improve the Group's internal control system.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The day-to-day management of the Company is delegated to the management by the Board,
with division heads responsible for individual department's daily operations.

Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board to the management include
the preparation of interim and annual reports and announcements for the Board's approval
before publishing, execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board,
implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and risk management procedures, and
compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules and regulations.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the nomination committee, remuneration committee and audit committee.
The committees’ terms of references defined their functions and responsibilities have posted
on the Company's website.
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Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2008, the nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) had Ms. Li Kei Ling as the committee’s chairman, and the three Independent
Non-executive Directors, Mr. Pan Xue Tian, Mr. Sik Siu Kwan and Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky as
the committee’'s members. The Nomination Committee's terms of reference are summarized
as follows:

] to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experiences)
of the Board on a regular basis and to make recommendation to the Board regarding any
proposed changes;

i) toidentify suitable individual qualified to become Board members; and

i) to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment
or reappointment of Directors if necessary, in particular, candidates who can add value to
the management through their contributions in the relevant strategic business areas and
which appointments will result on the constitution of a strong and diverse Board.

During the year 2008, the Nomination Committee had two meetings to review the renewal of
Directors’ service contracts.

Remuneration Committee

As at 31 December 2008, the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee™) had Ms. Li Kei Ling as the committee’s chairman, the three Independent Non-
executive Directors, Mr. Pan Xue Tian, Mr. Sik Siu Kwan and Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky as the
committee’s members. The Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference are summarized as
follows:

] to ensure that no Director or any of her/his associates is involved in deciding her/his own
remuneration; and

i) to make recommendations with respect to the remuneration of the Directors and the
senior management of the Company for approval by the Board.

The Group’s remuneration policy bases on the market practice, the qualification, duties and
responsibilities of Directors and employees. In order to attract, retain, and motivate high-performance
persons, the Company has adopted a share option scheme in 2003 to reward those participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 7 to the financial statements
and the details of the 2003 Share Option Scheme are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.

The Remuneration Committee had one meeting in 2008 to review and recommend to the
Board the salaries of the Directors.

Audit Committee

The Company has an audit committee (the "Audit Committee”) which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purpose of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group's financial reporting process and internal controls. The Audit Committee
comprises the three Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company who among themselves
possess a wealth of management experience in the accounting profession, commercial and
pharmaceutical sectors.
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Corporate Governance Report

As at 31 December 2008, the Audit Committee’s chairman was Mr. Sik Siu Kwan, Mr. Pan Xue
Tian and Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky were the committee’s members. The Audit Committee’s
terms of reference are summarized as follows:

] to consider and recommend the independence, remuneration, appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor;

i) to review financial information; and
i) to oversee financial reporting system and internal control procedures.

During the year 2008, the Audit Committee had three meetings to discuss internal control,
financial reporting matters and any areas of concerns during the audits. The Audit Committee
focuses not only on the impact of the changes in accounting policies and practices but also on
the compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements in the
review of the Company’s interim and annual reports.

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2008 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee before recommending it to the Board for approval.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young has been reappointed as the Company's external auditors at the AGM on 9 May
2008 until the conclusion of the next AGM. During the year 2008, the remuneration paid to the
Company's external auditors for audit service amounted to RMB,000,000.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communications with all shareholders. The Company
establishes and maintains different communication channels with its shareholders through the
publication of annual and interim reports and press release. Such information is also available
on the Company's website.

The Company's AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate directly with the
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board attends the AGM and arranges the chairman of the
committees or in the absence of the chairman of such committees, another member of the
committees to be available to answer questions at the AGM. Separate resolutions are proposed
at general meetings on each substantially separate issue, including the election of Directors.

VOTING BY POLL

Details of the poll voting procedures and the rights of shareholders to demand a poll in compliance
with the Articles and the Listing Rules 13.39(4) are included in the circular to shareholders
dispatched together with the annual report.

The chairman explains the procedure for demanding and conducting a poll again at the
commencement of the AGM.

The Company will ensure that votes cast including proxy votes are properly counted and
recorded.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. LI, Kei Ling, aged 60, is an Executive Director and the Chairman of the Company, and one
of the founders of the Group. Ms. Li founded the Group in December 1995 and was appointed
to the Board in October 2002. Ms. Li is also the Chairman of Dawnrays International Co., Ltd.,
Dawnrays International Co., Ltd. (RImEIFRiHBER L F] ), Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd,, Shanghai Dawnrays Chemical Co,, Ltd, Suzhou Dawnrays Chemical Co,, Ltd, Dawnrays
(Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd. and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong
Kong) Ltd., which are all subsidiaries of the Company. She is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. Ms. Li has over twenty years of experience in corporate
management, strategic planning, business operations and finance, in particular for pharmaceutical
enterprises in the PRC. She is responsible for supervising the strategic management decisions to
ensure good corporate governance practices and business policies are established, and executing
the overall developmental strategies of the Group.

Mr. HUNG, Yung Lai, aged 64, is an Executive Director of the Company and one of the
founders of the Group. Mr. Hung founded the Group in December 1995 and was appointed to
the Board in October 2002. Mr. Hung also holds directorship in Dawnrays International Co.,
Ltd., Dawnrays International Co., Ltd. (RIEIFRAA AR ), Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
Co,, Ltd., Shanghai Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd., Suzhou Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd., Dawnrays
(Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd. and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong
Kong) Ltd., which are all subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Hung holds a degree from L& & %
2[5t (Shanghai Conservatory of Music). He has over twenty years of experience in corporate
management and corporate development, and has participated in founding and managing of
pharmaceutical and high-tech enterprises. Mr. Hung is an executive director and the chairman
of Sing Lee Software (Group) Ltd., a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. LI, Tung Ming, aged 60, is an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Group
in April 2000 and was appointed to the Board in January 2004. Mr. Li also holds directorship in
Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Shanghai Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd., Suzhou
Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd. and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Ltd., which are all subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Li is also the supervisor of Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science
and Technology Co,, Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Li has over twenty years of experience
in the pharmaceutical industry in the PRC, and began his career in product development, promotion,
sales and corporate management in the pharmaceutical market in the PRC in 1980. Mr. Li has
participated in new product development of the Group and is responsible for liaison with the
Group's academic network of medical experts and academic advisers.

Mr. GAQ, Yi, aged 55, is an Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
He joined the Group in July 2003 and was the Executive Vice President of the Group. Mr. Gao
was appointed to the Board in January 2007. He also holds directorship in Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Shanghai Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd., Suzhou Dawnrays Chemical
Co, Ltd,, Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd. and Dawnrays
Pharma (Hong Kong) Ltd., which are all subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Gao is responsible for
the daily business operations and management of the Group. From 1994 to 2003, Mr. Gao was
the deputy general manager and general manager of Hebei Union Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and
Zhuhai Economic Zone Li Kang Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. respectively each for five years.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LEUNG, Hong Man, aged 34, is a Non-executive Director of the Company. He joined the
Group and was appointed to the Board in November 2005. Mr. Leung has started his business
career in knitting machinery since 1993. He has over ten years of experience in sales and
management positions and over six years of experience in investment management. Mr. Leung
currently is the shareholder and the director of Toyo International Investment Ltd., of which
has been one of the substantial shareholders (as required to be disclosed under Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance) of the Company since September 2005.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. PAN, Xue Tian, aged 72, is an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Pan joined the Group in June 2003. He is a member of the Remuneration Committee, the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Pan is the vice president
of HEEFHE (Chinese Hospital Association). Mr. Pan has extensive experience in drug
administration and supervision, medical hygiene and hospital management, and has assumed
various senior management positions in the Ministry of Health of the PRC. He graduated from
the medicine faculty of FEIKEE 28T (Dalian Medical University of the PRC).

Mr. CHOI, Tat Ying Jacky, aged 40, is an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Choi joined the Group in September 2004. He is a member of the Remuneration Committee,
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Choi has extensive
experience in financial and treasury management, corporate finance, investment and audit. He
earned his Bachelor degree of Business Administration from Hong Kong Baptist University with
a first class honours in 1990. Mr. Choi is a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and currently serving as the chief financial officer of AIG Retall
Bank Public Company Limited in Thailand, which he has served as director since October 2007.
He is also a director of AIG Card (Thailand) Company Limited. Mr. Choi is an independent
non-executive director of Norstar Founders Group Ltd., a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. SIK Siu Kwan, aged 41, is an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Sik
joined the Group in January 2007. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee, a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company respectively.
Mr. Sik has more than fifteen years of experience in investment banking and finance. He has
held senior positions with a number of major international investment banks, as well as a Hong
Kong operation of a core securities and investment banking operation of a state-owned PRC
bank, responsible for business development and regional business operations. Mr. Sik achieved
first class honours in his Bachelor’s degree in engineering from Oxford University in 1989 and is
a member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He is an independent
non-executive director of China Glass Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Sik is also an independent non-executive director of Simcere Pharmaceutical Group and
China Nepstar Chain Drugstore Limited respectively, both listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

STRATEGIC ADVISER

Mr. XU, Kehan, aged 36, is a Strategic Adviser of the Company. He joined the Group in
November 2003 and was an Executive Director and the Finance Director of the Company
between March 2004 and March 2007. Mr. Xu holds directorship in Dawnrays Pharma (Hong
Kong) Ltd,, a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Xu is responsible for advising corporate investment
policies and conducting strategic research for the Group. He holds a Master of Business Administration
from the University of Miami, USA with specialization in investment. Mr. Xu is currently a
doctoral candidate specializing in strategic management and international business/policies.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

ACADEMIC ADVISERS

Mr. ZHONG, Nan Shan, was invited to join our Group as a Senior Academic Adviser in April
2004. He graduated from Jb RAZEE4F (Beijing Medical University), and pursued his studies
in the Respiratory Medicine Unit of the Royal Infirmary, University of Edinburgh and the Department
of Respiratory Medicine of the St. Bartholomew's Hospital, University of London. He is currently
the academician of the Department of Medicine of The Chinese Academy of Engineering, the
president of Chinese Medical Association, the Professor of Medicine in Guangzhou Medical
College and the president of Guangzhou Association of Science and Technology. He has been
a medical adviser of the World Health Organisation Advisory Panel on Chronic Respiratory
Disease since 2000. He is also the director of Guangzhou Institute of Respiratory Disease. He
has written 4 books and published over 120 papers in the last decade. After the battle of
Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (“SARS"), he was invited to be the lecturer in the annual
meeting of American Thoracic Society — “Management of SARS in China” in Seattle, the United
States.

Mr. MEI, Hua, was invited to join our Group as a Senior Academic Adviser in April 2004. He
graduated from EMZEREERT (Guangzhou South China Medical College) and was qualified as
the specialist in urology from 1t B2t B % — &Pk (The First Affiliated Hospital of Beijing
Medical University) and Massachusetts General Hospital, USA. He has been the adviser and
professor of R [LIAZ2 K} 8 55 — BBl FRIMEH (Department of Urology of The First Affiliated Hospital
of Sun Yat-sen University) since 1980 and the director of F I L34 FR S} ES
of Urology of Shenzhen Sun Yat-sen Hospital) since 1986. Since 1991, he has been the adviser

5t (Department

for doctoral candidates in the First Affiliated Hospital of Sun Yat-sen University, the committee
vice president of IR B EINIRINELE
and the committee member of Urological Association of Asia and American Urological Association.
Mr. Mei has also written 3 books about urology and surgery.

& (The Urological Society of Chinese Medical Association)

Ms. LIU, Li Sheng, was invited to join our Group as a Senior Academic Adviser in May 2005.
She obtained a Bachelor degree of Science in Biology from Yenching University, Beijing in 1950,
and a Doctor of Medicine from Peking Union Medical College, Beijing in 1954. From 1980 to
1981, she pursued her postdoctoral research in the Cardiovascular Research and Training Centre,
University of Alabama at Birmingham. She is currently the Professor of Medicine in Fu Wai
Hospital, Chinese Academy of Medical Sciences in Beijing, the director of Clinical Trials and
Research Centre, Chinese Hypertension League in Beijing, the vice director of the National
Center for Cardiovascular Disease Control & Research in China and the president of Asian
Pacific Society of Hypertension. She has been the president and the honorary president of the
Chinese Society of Cardiology since 1988 and the president of the Chinese Hypertension
League since 1989. Ms. Liu has also been the vice president of the World Hypertension League
and the co-chairperson of the Scientific Steering Committee of Global Health Forum Cardiovascular
Disease in Developing Countries, World Health Organization since 1999. In 2006, Ms. Liu has
been elected to be the president of the World Hypertension League. She has been the chief
editor of the Chinese Journal of Hypertension and the members of a number of editorial
boards of journals in cardiology and hypertension.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. ZHU, Qin Sheng, aged 56, is the Vice President of the Company and the General Manager
of Shanghai Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd., responsible for assisting the Chief Executive Officer
in the aspects of Nantong project, administrative management, human resources, logistic
management, safety and environmental protection. Mr. Zhu has over twenty-five years of experience
in production management, financial management and operations for pharmaceutical enterprises.

He was the deputy factory director of &k /N % =&%ER (Suzhou Third Pharmaceutical Factory)
before joining the Group in April 1998.

Mr. LAM, Kam Wah, aged 55, is the Vice President of the Company. Mr. Lam also holds
directorship in Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Suzhou Dawnrays Chemical Co.,
Ltd. and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Ltd., which are all subsidiaries of the Company. He
graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor degree in Social Sciences.
Mr. Lam joined the Group in December 1995 and he has over fifteen years of experience in
pharmaceutical trading and corporate management. Mr. Lam is responsible for the international
business of the Group and the daily administration of the Company.

Mr. YAO Shi An, aged 58, is the Vice President of the Company and is responsible for the
Group's manufacturing facilities construction planning. Mr. Yao graduated from Beijing Technology
and Business University and has accumulated over thirty years of technical and corporate management
experience in the chemical and pharmaceutical industries in the PRC. Mr. Yao was an executive
director and the executive president of China Pharmaceutical Group Limited, before joining
the Group in July 2006.

Mr. LI, Jian Xiang, aged 53, is the Vice President of the Company and the General Manager of
Suzhou Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd., responsible for assisting the Chief Executive Officer in
the aspects of production and sales, production planning and the overall operations of Suzhou
Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd. Mr. Li has over twenty-five years of experience in production
management, engine facilities maintenance and operations for pharmaceutical enterprises. He
was the factory director of # /M5 —BIZZH (Suzhou Second Pharmaceutical Factory) before
joining the Group in April 1998.

Ms. WU Ji Hong, aged 38, is the Financial Controller of the Group. Ms. Wu is responsible for
the Group's financial planning, capital budgeting, execution of the Group's costing, budget planning
and execution, finance & accounting department management and other financial operations.
Ms. Wu obtained a Bachelor degree of Science from The Economics and Commercial Institution
of Center-South University with major in Economics and attained senior accountant qualification
in the PRC. Ms. Wu has over fifteen years of experience in auditing, budgeting, financial management,
corporate banking, taxation, PRC's taxation regulations and company law. Ms. Wu joined the
Group in July 2003.

Mr. Bo Hui, aged 47, is the Head of Sales and Marketing of the Group. Mr. Bo graduated from
the School of Pharmacy of Shengyang Pharmaceutical University with a Bachelor degree in
Pharmacy and completed the study of the Postgraduate program in Enterprise Management
from the School of Business Sun Yat-Sen University. Mr. Bo specializes in pharmacology and has
accumulated over twenty years of experience in pharmaceutical sales, marketing and business
development. Mr. Bo was the general manager of Livzon Pharmaceutical Sales Company and
the deputy head of sales and marketing of Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Mr. Bo joined the
Group in August 2004.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Mr. CHEN, Jian Dong, aged 44, is the Head of Research and Development of the Group. Mr.
Chen is a qualified pharmaceutical engineer and licensed pharmacist and has a Bachelor degree
in Chemical Pharmacology from HEIZERIKXEZ (The Pharmaceuticals University of the PRC)
where he spent three years as an assistant teacher. He was the head of the research centre and
antibiotics workshop manager at # /125 /W RZEH (Suzhou Fourth Pharmaceutical Factory) and
the head of the registration section of the research and development department of &/ # 1t
LR T AR A (Suzhou Chung-Hwa Chemical & Pharmaceutical Industrial Co., Ltd.) before
joining the Group in April 2002.

Mr. SU, Guo Qiang, aged 39, is the General Manager of Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd., responsible for the overall operations of Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Mr. Su
graduated from EZ(E TEZBE (Wuhan Institute of Chemical Technology) in chemical pharmaceutical
profession and qualified as a pharmaceutical engineer. He was the head of research centre and
the chief engineer of # M % — &% (Suzhou Second Pharmaceutical Factory). He joined the
Group in November 2001.

Mr. SHAQ, Jian Liang, aged 45, is the General Manager of Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical
Science and Technology Co., Ltd, responsible for the manufacturing facilities construction and
overall operations of Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd..
Mr. Shao graduated from JT#EHEEF K2 (Jiangsu Radio and TV University) in fine organic
chemical engineering. He joined the Group in June 1997 and was the bulk medicine workshop
manager of Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and the deputy general manager of
Shanghai Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd.

Ms. PANG Kit Ling, aged 43, is the Company Secretary of the Company and the supervisor of
Suzhou Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd. She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, an associate of both The Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Pang holds a Master of Arts in
Professional Accounting and Information Systems degree from the City University of Hong
Kong and has over ten years of experience in the fields of accounting and administration. She
joined the Company in July 2003.
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) herein present their report and the audited financial
statements of Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the principal activities of
the subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the financial statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2008 and the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group at that date are set out in the audited financial statements on pages
35 to 94.

An interim dividend of HK$0.018 per ordinary share was paid on |7 September 2008. The
Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.040 per ordinary share in respect
of the year, to shareholders on the register of members on 5 May 2009. This recommendation
has been incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of retained profits within the
capital and reserves section of the balance sheet.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities and minority interests of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial statements
and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 95. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LAND USE RIGHTS

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and land use rights of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in notes |4 and |5 to the financial statements,
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 28 to
the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s articles of association or
the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

24 2008 annual (-:1.)i¢| Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited

Exg([EFg) REEFHERRHRY (F
B)ARRE ([AR2R]) REMBAR (RBIARE
BENHEZZENF+_A=1+—RBIEFENEEX
MWK -

FTEER

FRARMEEEBRIREER - WBRRNEEER
FHBEHI NP B MERMTI8 - ARERFANTER
BHEEITESKEH -

RERKRE

REBHE-_ZTN\E+_A=+—HIFENEMN
RADNFRIRANEERZBNITBRR - SREHEZM
MK EIBEIAE -
BREBRBELOISTHFHBREENR -_TTNSF
NATEERE -EFERZANR_TTAFRAR
A & 51| B3R 4 i 00 AR B S 5 R B AR B B IR i AR
0.0407T - BEARZEBIAMBHRE - Wit AEESR
BERABRRRFEE R BERBEN—EF -

HEERHE

Eis AR E SN D EMRFED AMIEERITS
BRUBBEEFTOBENCDDMES - EE - BER
DERREEHBHNEH - AMEL THEKLE
R BREROED ©

¥  BERREBER L BERE

ARBRARBERFRNME - BiFERRHERLHE
RIENEEFE - DRIBMNBBHIREOME14R16

R A
ARBZBARKNEEZ BHER Y B REM 28 -

BRBERE
ARATMA R E MO S SRR LR
EEBEROMEN - AEAD AR IR 2 &
RTRBRE -



Report of the Directors

EETHRS

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

During the year, the Company repurchased 16,464,000 shares of the Company's listed securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at an aggregate consideration of HK$ 1,534,080

BE BERHEXALR LTRSS

FRN - ARAEEEBREAXSMBERAAER
16,464,000/ &1y « REFEMER ZLRERBHK

before expenses. The monthly breakdown of shares repurchased during the year were as follows: 11,534,080 * REFENE AEERR G FBEHH 0
T

Number The highest The lowest Aggregate

of shares price paid price paid consideration

repurchased per share per share paid

Month of repurchase BE AH BERDHE ERBEE BREBEE RERE
(HKY) (HK$) (HKY)

(%) (%) (%)

January 2008 416,000 0.76 0.74 313,840
September 2008 4,232,000 0.78 0.72 3,167,080
October 2008 6,184,000 0.75 0.63 4,173,080
November 2008 3,596,000 0.71 0.66 2,454,520
December 2008 2,036,000 0.72 0.69 1,425,560
Total 485t 16,464,000 11,534,080

The repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled. The nominal value of the cancelled shares
was transferred to the capital redemption reserve and the premium payable on repurchase was
charged against the share premium account. The repurchases were effected by the Directors
for the enhancement of shareholder value in the long term.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company's listed securities for the year ended 31 December 2008.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are set
out in consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 30 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2008, the Company’s reserves available for distribution amounted to
RMB262,848,000, of which RMB27,477,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the year.
Under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the Company of approximately RMB57,684,000 as at 3|
December 2008 is distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in
a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share
premium account may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for 22.06% of
the total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to
6.22%. Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 48.06%of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
24.09%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or any shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors
Ms. Li Kei Ling

Mr. Hung Yung Lai
Mr. Li Tung Ming
Mr. Gao Yi

Non-executive Director
Mr. Leung Hong Man

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Pan Xue Tian

Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky

Mr. Sik Siu Kwan

In accordance with the article 87 of the Company'’s articles of association, Mr. Li Tung Ming, Mr.
Pan Xue Tian and Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky will retire by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting (*“AGM").

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Mr. Pan Xue Tian, Mr.
Choi Tat Ying Jacky and Mr. Sik Siu Kwan, and as at the date of this report still considers them
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior management of the Group
are set out on pages |9 to 23 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Ms. Li Kei Ling has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of two years
which commenced on | July 2003. Ms. Li's service contract was renewed for a term of three
years which commenced on | July 2008 and is subject to termination by the Company giving
not less than three months’ written notice. Ms. Li is currently entitled to director’s fee and other
remuneration from the Group totally HK$5 18,400 per year.

Mr. Hung Yung Lai has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of two
years which commenced on | July 2003. Mr. Hung's service contract was renewed for a term of
three years which commenced on | July 2008 and is subject to termination by the Company
giving not less than three months’ written notice. Mr. Hung is currently entitled to director’s fee
and other remuneration from the Group totally HK$5 18,400 per year.
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Mr. Li Tung Ming entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of two years
which commenced on |4 January 2004. Mr. Li's service contract was renewed on | January
2007 for a term of three years and is subject to termination by either party giving not less than
three months’ written notice. Mr. Li is currently entitled to director's fee and other remuneration
from the Group totally HK$518,400 per year.

Mr. Gao Yi has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of two years which
commenced on | January 2007. Mr. Gao's service contract was renewed for a term of two
years which commenced on | January 2009 and is subject to termination by either party giving
not less than two months’ written notice. Mr. Gao is currently entitled to director’s fee and
other remuneration from the Group totally HK$9 14,400 per year and a discretionary bonus
payable at the absolute discretion of the Board.

Mr. Leung Hong Man has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of two
years which commenced on | November 2005. Mr. Leung’s service contract was renewed for
a term of two years commencing | November 2007, and is subject to termination by either
party giving not less than one month’s written notice. Mr. Leung is currently entitled to a basic
annual remuneration of HK$96,000. Save for the above director’s fee, Mr. Leung is not entitled
to any other remuneration.

Mr. Pan Xue Tian has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of two years
which commenced on | July 2003. Subsequently, Mr. Pan’s service contract was renewed for a
term of two years commencing | July 2007, Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of two years which commenced on 30 September 2004.
Subsequently Mr. Choi's service contract was renewed for a term of two years commencing 30
September 2008. Mr. Sik Siu Kwan has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of two years which commenced on 10 January 2007. Subsequently, Mr. Sik's service contract
was renewed for a term of two years commencing 10 January 2009. Mr. Pan, Mr. Choi and Mr.
Sik's appointments are subject to termination by either party giving not less than one month’s
written notice. Each of Mr. Pan , Mr. Choi and Mr. Sik are currently entitled to an annual
remuneration of HK$120,000. Save for the above directors’ fees, the three Independent Non-
executive Directors are not entitled to any other remuneration.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance
to the business of the Group. There is no contract of significance between the Group, its
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or were in existence during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 21 June 2003. The
detailed disclosures relating to the Scheme and valuation of options are set out in Note 29 to
the financial statements.

Movements of Company's share options under the Scheme during the year were as follows:

B8
ARAR-FE=FAA=+T—BRABBETE

([5T&1]) - BEAFENFBERERENGESHNI G
wMERMIE29 ©

RERN - GHEPFNRARBFEREZHNT

Closing price of the
Number of share options Company's shares (c)
BERA ARARBUHRE(C)
At
immediate
Date of grant Exercise date
of share Exercise period price before
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At options (a) of share options of share the grant
| January during during during the 3| December (dd/mmlyy) (ddimmlyy) options(b) B
Name or 2008 the year the year year (d) 008 RiEERE e BRE BiRE
category of SRELR R-BRNE £ ER ER RZZBNE A TREH @b H-X
participant Bl -B-H B g B&Md  t=A=t-8 (B/B/%H) (B/B/%) HK$ HK$
it it
Director Ez
Mr. Gao Yi BREE 900,000 — (300000) — 600,000 28/12/04 28/12/05-27/12/10 058 059
3,000,000 — — — 3,000,000 04104107 04/04/08-03/04/13 071 070
3900000 — (300000) — 3,600000
Other employees EfbEE
In aggregatele) 3t 2500000 — (600000) — 1900000 17111104 17111105-16/11110 083 061
11,280,000 — (1,040,000) (140,000) 10,100,000 28/12/04 28/12/05-27/12/10 058 059
800,000 — — — 800,000 10/01/07 01/09/07-31108/12 072 0.68
4,500,000 — — — 4,500,000 04104107 04/04/08-03/04/13 071 070
1,300,000 — — — 1,300000 10/07/07 10/07/08-09/07/13 080 080
— 800,000 — — 800,000 01/02/08 01/02/09-31/01/14 074 074
— 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000 09/12/08 09/12/09-08/12/14 070 071
20,380,000 1,800,000 (1,640000) (140000) 20,400,000
Other participant Afbp5E 400000 - - - 400000 05/05/05 05/05/06-04/05/09 050 049
24,680,000 1,800,000 (1.940,000) (140,000) 24,400,000
(a)  The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant until the commencement (a) ERENESENABRLBHETEHENGA
of the exercise period. 1k e
(b)  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or (b)  fYEITHEKITAMPKADFIEA I E A
bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital. KU E  BIERENITEEETUREE -
(c)  The price of the Company's shares disclosed as at immediate date before the grant of the (c) WMIEBFEBREN—KFEBENADFRGER
share options is the Stock Exchange closing price on the trading day immediately prior to AREETFERELCRAN—FEXS BB
the date of grant of the options. W (g o
(d)  Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme due to resignation of employees. (d) ERESBOCBE  BREREITZINKERMm

The price of the Company's shares disclosed immediately before the exercise date of the share
options is the weighted average of the Stock Exchange closing prices immediately before the
dates on which the options were exercised over all of the exercise of options within the
disclosure line. The weighted average closing price of the Company's shares immediately before
the dates on which the options were exercised by the Director and other employees were
HK$0.76 and HK$0.78 respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTSAND SHORT POSITIONS EERHETAROREBRONERR

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES RE
As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions of the Directors and Chief Executive RIZZENF+TA=+—B EEREHERAKRF
in the shares or underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations SHBEMEE (EEREF PRGN ([EEREE

(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded 1&011) BXVER) B - HHEERG REFT - AT
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as BRARARBEES P EFIIE2EFENER
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for it HRIE E AR ESETELRRSHNIEESTAA

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows: HMEARNR R ZAEOEDFAREINNT
Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RARBEBBRT TR -

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

BFENRDHE - HORESME

Percentage of
the Company's

Through issued share
Directly ~ Share Option controlled capital
Name Notes beneficially granted corporation RN
a8 M aE owned EREHN BiBE Total BRTRA
HEERES R DRFE my HWE L
Directors
E=
Ms. Li Kei Ling (@) — — 342,072,000 342,072,000 4393
FHR LT
Mr. Hung Yung Lai (a) — — 342,072,000 342,072,000 4393
RRRE
Mr Li Tung Ming (b) 9,976,000 — 56,000,000 65,976,000 8.47
FRAKE
Mr. Gao Yi (o) 600,000 3,600,000 — 4,200,000 0.54
BREE
Mr. Leung Hong Man (d) — — 60,000,000 60,000,000 7.71
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of associated corporation: PAEREEB RO RABER D P EFAE
Percentage of
the associated
corporation's
Capacity and issued share
nature of capital
Name of Relationship with Number interest 1hIEE A E
Name of Director associated corporation the Company Shares of shares H#HR 2BTRA
E=EB HEBEE A BN RWEE gy ROBE EEME HWED
Ms. Li Kei Ling Fortune United the Company's Ordinary shares 2 Through a controlled 50
FHRZT Group Limited holding company Tk corporation
RRBEERAF] BE—REES AT
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Fortune United the Company's Ordinary shares 2 Through a controlled 50
RRRIE Group Limited holding company TimAR corporation
KRR EER AR wmiB— MG AR

EHEAH(ER)ARA D A )
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Notes:

(@) 342,072,000 shares are held by Fortune United Group Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. Keysmart Enterprises Limited, which is wholly-owned by Ms. Li Kei Ling, and Hunwick
International Limited, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Hung Yung Lai, are each beneficially interested in
50% of the share capital of Fortune United Group Limited.

(b) 56,000,000 shares are held by Time Lead Investments Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. The entire issued share capital of Time Lead Investments Limited is beneficially owned
by Mr. Li Tung Ming.

(c) 3,600,000 shares options were granted to Mr. Gao Yi under the Company's option scheme adopted
on 2| June 2003 and Mr. Gao is deemed to be interested in the shares which will be issued to him
upon his exercise of option, representing approximately 0.46% of the Company's issued share capital.

(d) 60,000,000 shares are held by Toyo International Investment Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong. Mr. Leung Hong Man and Mr. Leung Yiu Sing are each beneficially interested in 50% of the
share capital of Toyo International Investment Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of the Directors or Chief Executive
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading ““Share option scheme”, “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” above and in the share option
scheme disclosures in note 29 to the financial statements, at no time during the year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

30 2008 annual (:]:lslgt | Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited

Hiz

(a) 342,072,000 % 17 B — 2R 1A 5488 # B B B R A 3z
#)A Bl Fortune United Group LimitedFf#5H ° Fortune
United Group Limited WA FTER Z+2EWABH
Keysmart Enterprises Limited X R AEBMIE L A2 &
& #Hunwick International Limited & & B 25 550%
M o

(b) 56,000,000 % 17 B8 — 5% 7 5 /B8 4 B R B B kR Ak 2 A0
A Time Lead Investments Limited 154 © Time Lead
Investments Limitedf) 2 & B TR A B Z R K &
BEanAs -

(c) REBEARAR-ZTZ=F A=+ BRMZBRIES
2 B3R AR T3,600,0008 AR - =L AEER
BHAETEZIBRIEREEITARZROER - D
IEARRBBEITRNM0.46% ©

(d) 60,000,000/ % {5 By — KB & 78 s il B 32 A9 22 B SF B
BIRERRABFFEA - REERKREFRRANZH
BETRAARERRRERTES B EmEB0%E

250

m

Br BB MARETIRZA - BIEEFRBHER
AR SR E A EBENKRD - HERDKES
o BERAREES REEGRDIE3652& T A E
HRBELTARNERETERRFGNEETANE
ARB RO DILR

EEZREROUESNES

Brot Bt (R AR AT &) — 8 [EEREHNRO R
AR R R OB | — 8 R TS R M 2077 #
BREABENERIN  FALEBENES  BF
MR B SRR 185 F R A B B A2 B
HEFN T ERBEEORER - IRETEEFNZE
R - RARTE - HEBRARREEFAMNB ARG Z
EfR R AL ERAREBEAEMEARES B
) o



Report of the Directors

EETHRS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2008, the following interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:

FERRREMATRRORAEBRS
Ay

RIZZENF+TZA=+—8  REEFRBEE
FIBHARARBFENEA LML KA
ARG RAREROOESSOAEHIINT

SR

Number of shares held,

capacity and nature of interest

HENROHE - SORERME

Percentage of
the Company’s

Through issued share
Directly controlled capital
Beneficially Family corporation [EE N
Name Note owned interest EiBE Total BRTRA
&8 FRE HEERERER KBRS DREHE ny MBS
Fortune United Group Limited (a) 342,072,000 — — 342,072,000 43.93
Keysmart Enterprises Limited (@) — — 342,072,000 342,072,000 4393
Hunwick International Limited (a) — — 342,072,000 342,072,000 43.93
Mdm. lu Pun (b) — 342,072,000 — 342,072,000 43.93
w2+
Time Lead Investments Limited (o) 56,000,000 — — 56,000,000 7.19
Toyo International Investment Limited (d) 60,000,000 — — 60,000,000 7.71
REERKERRAT
Mdm. Lo Mei Sai (e) — 60,000,000 — 60,000,000 7.71
EEBHTL
Mr. Leung Yiu Sing (d)&(f) — — 61,512,000 61,512,000 7.90
Mdm. Chu Shuet Fong (H&(g) — 60,000,000 1,512,000 61,512,000 7.90
REFLZL
Notes: Kt

(@)  Theissued capital of Fortune United Group Limited is equally beneficially owned by Keysmart Enterprises
Limited and Hunwick International Limited which are in turn, respectively, wholly-owned by Ms. Li Kei
Ling and Mr. Hung Yung Lai, Executive Directors of the Company.

(b)  Mdm. lu Pun is the wife of Mr. Hung Yung Lai and is deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by Mr. Hung Yung Lai.

() The entire issued capital of Time Lead Investments Limited is beneficially owned by Mr. Li Tung Ming,
an Executive Director of the Company.

(d)  Theissued capital of Toyo Intemational Investment Limited is equally beneficially owned by Mr. Leung
Hong Man, the Non-executive Director of the Company and his father Mr. Leung Yiu Sing.

(e)  Mdm. Lo Mei Sai is the wife of Mr. Leung Hong Man and is deemed to be interested in the shares of
the Company held by Mr. Leung Hong Man.

) 1,512,000 shares of the Company are held by Dragon Asia Industrial (Holdings) Ltd., a company
incorporated in Hong Kong. Mr. Leung Yiu Sing and Mdm. Chu Shuet Fong, his wife, are each beneficially
interested in 50% of the share capital of Dragon Asia Industrial (Holdings) Ltd.

(a) Fortune United Group Limited®) 2 %17 i% 7N (5 Keysmart
Enterprises Limited &2 Hunwick International Limited
FHEEHEB - Keysmart Enterprises Limited &
Hunwick International Limited % 5l A K 2 Bl B 1T &
FFEHERLZIREMEAE2ERE -

(b) W ER T RREEEENEE  BRERNRERREELE
FANARR RN P HEAER -

() Time Lead Investments Limited#) & & 2 3174 M
AAR—BRITEFTRAL LTSS ©

(d  FEEBREERRIRNEHITRAD B RARFIE
HITEERFERAERBRZ XBRBKREET RS
B

(e) BEEXTARRREENELRE HRERSNRER%
ERBNARB R P HEAER -

(f) 1,512,000 AR RIRH B —RNEBETMALHRE
REEESMARARMGE  REBEEEMERAA
HEBEETRAEZEKEERARBAES L&
EESMA50%E

REHAB(ER) ARAE A el



Report of the Directors

EETHRS

(g9 Mdm. Chu Shuet Fong is the wife of Mr. Leung Yiu Sing and is deemed to be interested in the shares
of the Company held by Mr. Leung Yiu Sing.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, no person, other than the Directors and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” above, had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Li Kei Ling
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2009
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Independent Auditors’ Report

BB RE

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= kK

DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

We have audited the financial statements of Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 35
to 94, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2008,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of these financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

BRHEH ER)BERAF
(ERSHREEMALNARLF)
2RERR
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Independent Auditors’ Report

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 3|1 December 2008 and of the Group's profit and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

|8/F, Two International Finance Centre,
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

26 March 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement \
| HAE R

Year ended 31 December 2008
Hz_ZZ ) \&E+_A=+—HILtEE

2008 2007
—EEN\F —TEHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
LiEsd AR®BT R ARBFT

REVENUE LSON 4 947,710 919,945
Cost of sales SHERAK (691,047) (680,443)
Gross profit ER 256,663 239,502
Other income and gain H A Rz 4 5,072 4320
Selling and distribution costs HERDIHER (79,395) (69,218)
Administrative expenses TR E R (43,796) (41,117)
Other expenses Hi &M (22,485) (21,950)
Finance costs BsER 5 (343) —
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBLAT A 6 15,716 111,537
Tax BUE 10 (13,585) (10,380)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 102,131 101,157
Attributable to: AT SIS

Equity holders of the parent BRAEERFAA I 102,037 101,072

Minority interest LIRS 94 85

102,131 101,157

DIVIDENDS: BE : 12

Interim R Hf 12,576 11,804

Proposed final BURALR 27,477 28,224
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BAREERER

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS BEAEL

OF THE PARENT BREF I3

— basic, for profit for the year — 5K URFERFFE RMBO0.1290 RMBO. 1260

— diluted, for profit for the year — 8 UARFEEFFE RMBO.1284 RMBO.1253

REHB(ER)ERAE AN 2]



Balance Sheets |
HEEER

31 December 2008
RZTEZENF+ZA=+—H

Group Company
KEE Y|
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZBENE ZETtE ZBENE “EREE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
[ ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VER 14 248,935 23017 12 76
Land use rights TifERE 15 23,078 23225 — —
Construction in progress ERIR 16 53,033 10496 — —
Prepayments SENEA 15 26,072 26072 — —
Intangible assets EVEE 17 14,631 14632 — —
Interests in subsidiaries RHBARMER 18 - — 285,738 2883813
Deferred tax assets BEREEE Vi 892 868 - —
Total non-current assets FRBEELS 366,641 298310 285,750 288,889
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories {5354 19 159,536 124435 — -
Trade and notes receivables EUESRREFA 20 391,041 341,170 - —
Prepayments, deposits and BE®  ZER
other receivables Efbe iR 2l 15,657 5752 190 42
Financial assets at fair value through RARERABRE
profit or loss 2B EE 0 3,404 4888 3,404 4888
Cash and cash equivalents ReRASEEN 23 38,936 76,843 4207 31,091
Total current assets nBEELR 608,574 553,088 7,801 36402
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and notes payables ERNESRREHE % 281,428 247407 - —
Other payables and accruals Eft AR B 2 36,348 2843 738 1,165
Bank advances for discounted bills ROERRERH 25 24,907 — - —
Income tax payable NGB 3319 2142 — —
Total current liabilities nBEEES 346,002 272392 738 1,165
NET CURRENT ASSETS MBEEFE 262,572 280,696 7,063 35237
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEGER
LIABILITIES nEAE 629,213 579,006 292,813 324,126
Net assets BAE 62913 579,006 292813 324126
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to equity holders BAREERAA
of the parent [
Issued capital BEARA 28 82,964 84,241 82,964 84,241
Reserves it 30 518,100 465,887 182,372 211661
Proposed final dividend RERARE 12 27477 28204 27477 28204
628,541 578,352 292,813 324,126
Minority interest HURRER 672 654 — —
Total equity BHEH 629,213 579,006 292813 324,126
LI KEI LING GAOYI
FHER =R
Director Director
EF o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity & R B E

Year ended 31 December 2008
BHE_ZZN\F+_A=+—BLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the parent
BRREEREARGER

Capital Share Statutory  Exchange Proposed
Issued Share  redemption option surplus — fluctuation final Minority
capital  premium reserve reserve Contributed reserve reserve  Retained  dividend interest Total

Notes — B#fT  account BA BRE  wpus EERR EX profits R Totd  PHRE  equity
i B RiyEE BEEE fh BAR%  DEE RBEE REEN KBRS &t Bn EReE
RMB000  RMB000  RMBOO0 ~ RMBO000  RMBO000 ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMBOO0  RMBO000  RMBO000  RMB000  RMBOOO
ARBTT ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT

(note 28) (note 30)  (note 30)  (note 30)  (note 30)  (note 30) (note 12)
(Hizt28) (Hiz£30) (Wiz#30) (Mi#30) (Wi#30) (Hi#30) (Hizt12)

At | January 2007 RZZZ+5-FA-A 84791 69,160 194 1902 100175 5277 383189227 13654 512257 790 513047
Exchange realignment EHRE — — - - - — (540 - — (540 — (540
Total income and expense for B EHEIMERN

the year recognised directly  HERMIAEE

in equity WAL e — — — — — —  (A) — — (540 — (AN
Proft for the year RERRR = - - - - = — lo1om — lo1on 85 101,157
Total income and expense REEMAR

for the year gt — — — — — — (540 10107 — 95652 8 95737
Exercise of share options IR pi) 505 2992 — (558) — — — — — 2939 — 9%
Shares repurchased and BER

cancelled B0 28 (1055 (678) 1055 - - - — (1055 — (18 — 18
Dividends paid to minority BRSH

shareholder BEE - - — — — — — — — — @1 @1
Final 2006 dividend BER=FERE

declared RERE — — — — — — — — (13654)  (13654) —  (13654)
Dividend on shares issued for ~ ZEFNE

employee share options +=A=t+—-R%

exercised after TEnESERE

31 December 2006 FETRANRE — - - - (65) - (65) = (65)
Equity-settled share option IR

arrangements RER 9 864 — — — — — 864 — 864
Interim 2007 dividend ZEREERERE 12 — — — —  (11.804) — (11804 — (11804
Proposed final 2007 dividend ~ #EE=ZE+4F

RERE 12 = = = — 84 84 — — —
Transfer from retained profits B RE i F|PER — — 10382 — (1038 = = = =
At 31 December 2007 RZFZ+F
t=ZR=1-AR 208 100075 63053 (5037) 238769 28224 578352 654 579006

EEE T AE- SRN = D008 &+ & 3/



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

et ERE R

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZZN\F+_RA=1T—HILFE

BARRRSA ARGRS
Capital Share Statutory  Exchange Proposed
Issued Share redemption option surplus ~ fluctuation final Minority
capital  premium reserve  reserve Contributed reserve  reserve  Retained  dividend interest Total
Notes  BEfT  account Bx  BRE  arpls  EEBH EX  profits Rk Tol  DERE  equity
ik B RGEE BORE B SRR ORE RIEE REEN RERR L o
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AR%TT
(note 28) (note 30)  (note 30)  (note 30)  (note 30)  (note 30) (note 12)
(Hi28) (Ws0) (Wso) (WEso) (Hso) (Hso) (833 12)
At I January 2008 RZZZ\§-A-H 84,241 65,370 1,249 2208 100,175 63,153 (5,037) 238769 2824 578352 654 579,006
Exchange realignment B A% — — - - - — 41 - —  (4n) —  (47m)
Total income and expense for B EHZIMERA
the year recognised directly BANKEE
in equity WARS L - - - - - — 47 - —  4n) — Q4
Profit for the year RERR — — — — — - — 102,037 — 102,037 94 102,131
Total income and expense TEERAR
for the year it — — — — — — 41 102,097 — 99560 9 99654
Exercise of share options IfeRRE 29 173 1,046 - (195) - — — - - 1,024 — 1,024
Share repurchased and BRI R HRA
cancelled 28 (1,450) (8.732) 1,450 — — - - (1,450) — (10,182 —  (l0,182)
Dividends paid to minority BRAIERARE
shareholder - - - - - — — - - — (76) (76)
Final 2007 dividend declared ~ ER-FELHF
KRS - - - - - - - — (804 (2824 — (824
Dividend on shares issued for ~ ZZZtF+=A
employee share =+—RET6R
options exercised EERRERES
after 31 December 2007 P& — — — — — - - 22 — 22 — (22)
Equity-settled share option SARAE f
arrangements BREZH oy - — — 609 - - - - - 609 - 609
Interim 2008 dividend “ERNF
RS 12 - — — — — — —  (1257¢) — (12576 — (12576
Proposed final 2008 dividend ~ BE=TE/\F
RERE 12 — — — — — — — 4y 4T — — —
Transfer from retained profits BB RFIR & - - - — — 10898 —  (1089) — — — —
At 31 December 2008 RZFRN\F
+=ZA=1+-H 82,964 57,684 2,699 2,622 100,175 74,051 (7,514) 288,383 27477 62854l 672 629213
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EHETRER

Year ended 31 December 2008
Hz_ZZ ) \&E+_A=+—HILtEE

2008 2007
—EEN\F —TEHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
LiEsd AR®BT R ARBFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHNRSRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: BRBLATEA : 115716 111,537
Adjustments for: BTFIFRE
Finance costs BisER 5 343 —
Interest income FEHA 4 (936) (945)
Dividend income from financial assets RARBERABRERZ
at fair value through profit or loss M EENRSKA 4 (162) (68)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE « WERZE
plant and equipment 18 B WER 6 295 1,585
Impairment of intangible assets m A ERERR 6 385 4,166
Depreciation e 6 22,827 23,143
Amortisation of intangible assets R |7 1,131 912
Recognition of land use rights 3 fE FRAERERR 6 442 325
Loss/(gain) on disposal of financial assets HERARBERABRRZ
at fair value through profit or loss B EENER, (W) 6 276 (1,302)
Fair value losses, net: RAEBEFE
Financial assets at fair value RARBELZABERZ
through profit or loss TS EE 6 1,908 294
Equity-settled share option expenses ARG A S A5 B i AR A 7 S 6 609 864
142,834 140,511
(Increase)/decrease in inventories TR ogm R (35,101) 10,162
Increase in trade and notes receivables FEWE 5 K AR FRIBIE N (24,964) (77,628)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments AR (gm) R (6,058) 6,745
(Increase)/decrease in deposits and e R HEAMERTIR
other receivables (gm) md (3,847) 3,697
Increase in trade and notes payables FERHE 5 R E R FIEE N 34,021 46,165
Increase in other payables H A 8 <P R IE 1S 1,672 10,374
Increase in accruals FEET B &R 1,674 |88
Income tax paid ERATEH (12,432) (9,663)
Net cash inflow from operating activities KEBEHNBESIMAFR 97,799 130,551

BHEBH(RR)ARAD [ e



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement ‘
BHAERER

Year ended 31 December 2008
Bz_ZZ ) \F+_A=+—HILEE

2008 2007
—EEN\F T LHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
ks AR®BT R ARBFT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHNESTE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BEHF S 4 936 945
Dividends income from financial assets BE AR ERABRR
at fair value through profit or loss 2 EENREA 4 162 68
Proceeds from disposal of items HEWRIEE - BER
of property, plant and equipment REBIE B BPATS TR 320 123
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERARBERARRRZ
at fair value through profit or loss BB ER TS TR 3,968 15,742
Purchase of items of property, BEWX -
plant and equipment BiE RERESEE R
and construction in progress EREIRE (81,741) (22,090)
Acquisition of a subsidiary B E A R — (618)
Purchase of intangible assets BERTEE 17 (1,515) (3,760)
Purchase of land use rights REE T I5 (295) (10,346)
Increase in prepayments TRt FIE N — (26,072)
Purchase of financial assets at fair BERAABLABRR
value through profit or loss 2B ERE (4,688) (15,658)
Net cash outflow from investing activities REBENIER I HFE (82,853) (61,666)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHNRERE
Proceeds from exercise of share options TR FTIS TR 1,024 2,939
Repurchase and cancellation of shares BB R a8 1 AR (10,182) (7,840)
Interest paid BERFIE 5 (343) —
Dividends paid EARE. (40,822) (25,523)
Dividends paid to minority shareholder [EANES e (76) 21)
Net cash outflow from financing activities ME BRI HFE (50,399) (30,645)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND REeRBELZEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS (R /i (35,453) 38,240
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FORELBRCEEY 76,843 44,023
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net RS E) 2 B FHE (2,454) (5,420)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRAER
AT END OF YEAR REZEEY 38,936 76,843
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERBESZEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS DT
Cash and bank balances RE MRITRET 23 38,462 48,205
Short term deposits FRERIRTTIF 23 474 28,638
38,936 76,843
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 85 R AR Y R

2.1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (the “Company) was incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 20 September 2002
under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) comprising the Group underwent a
reorganisation on 2| June 2003 to rationalise the Group’s structure in preparation for the
listing of the shares of the Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the ““Stock Exchange”), pursuant to which the Company became the holding
company of the Group (the “Group Reorganisation”).

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the development, manufacture
and sale of non-patented chemical medicines including cephalosporin in bulk medicine
and powder for injection, their intermediate pharmaceuticals and system specific medicines.
In the opinion of the directors, Fortune United Group Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, is the holding company of the Company.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on ||
July 2003.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except
for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss that have been measured at fair
value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") (which include all International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standard (“IASs™) and Interpretations)
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2008.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which
the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
the parent company, using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full.

Minority interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not held by the
Group and are presented separately in the consolidated income statement and within
equity in the consolidated balance sheet, separately from parent shareholders’ equity.

2.1.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 35 SR AR P

2.2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year

except as follows:

The Group has adopted the following new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations

as of | January 2008.

IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Amendments — Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Reclassification of Financial Assets

IFRIC || IRFS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions

IFRIC 12 — Service Concession Arrangements

IFRIC 14 1AS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements
and their interaction

Adoption of these standards and interpretations did not have any effect on the financial

performance or position of the Group. They did however give rise to additional disclosures.

The principal effects of these changes are as follows:

(@)

Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Reclassification of Financial Assets

The amendments to IAS 39 permit an entity to reclassify a non-derivative financial
asset classified as held for trading, other than a financial asset designated by an
entity as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition, out of the fair
value through profit or loss category if the financial asset is no longer held for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, if specified criteria are met.

A debt instrument that would have met the definition of loans and receivables (if it
had not been required to be classified as held for trading at initial recognition) may
be classified out of the fair value through profit or loss category or (if it had not
been designated as available for sale) may be classified out of the available-for-sale
category to the loans and receivables category if the entity has the intention and
ability to hold it for the foreseeable future or until maturity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2.2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES (Contd)

(@)

(b)

(d)

Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Reclassification of Financial Assets
(Cont'd)

In rare circumstances, financial assets that are not eligible for classification as loans
and receivables may be transferred from the held-for-trading category to the available-
for-sale category or to the held to maturity category (in the case of a debt instrument),
if the financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term.

The financial asset shall be reclassified at its fair value on the date of reclassification
and the fair value of the financial asset on the date of reclassification becomes its
new cost or amortised cost, as applicable. The amendments to IFRS 7 require
extensive disclosures of any financial asset reclassified in the situations described
above. The amendments are effective from | July 2008.

As the Group has not reclassified any of its financial instruments, the amendments
have had no impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Group.

IFRIC || IFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions

The Group has adopted IFRIC Interpretation | | insofar as it applies to consolidated
financial statements. This interpretation requires arrangements whereby an employee
is granted rights to an entity’s equity instruments to be accounted for as an equity-
settled scheme, even if the entity buys the instruments from another party, or the
shareholders provide the equity instruments needed. The Group has not issued
any instruments caught by this interpretation.

IFRIC 12 — Service Concession Arrangements

The IFRIC issued IFRIC 12 in November 2006. This interpretation applies to service
concession operators and explains how to account for the obligations undertaken
and rights received in service concession arrangements. No member of the Group
is an operator and, therefore, this interpretation has no impact on the Group.

IFRIC 14 1AS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction

IFRIC Interpretation 14 provides guidance on how to assess the limit on the amount
of surplus in a defined benefit scheme that can be recognised as an asset under IAS
|9 Employee Benefits. As the Group has no defined benefit scheme, the interpretation
has had no effect on these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 35 SR AR P

2.3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to
the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at fair values at the date of acquisition,
irrespective of the extent of any minority interest.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination
over the Group’s share in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash generating units that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

When the Group acquires a business, embedded derivatives separated from the host
contract by the acquiree are not reassessed on acquisition unless the business combination
results in a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required under the contract.

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the Company controls,
directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's income statement to the extent
of dividends received and receivable. The Company's investment interests in subsidiaries
that are not classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 85 R AR Y R

2.3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Foreign currency translation

The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the Group's
functional currency. That is the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Group operates. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional
currency rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency spot rate of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the income statement
with the exception of differences on foreign currency borrowings accounted for as a
hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation. These are taken directly to equity until
the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognised in the income
statement. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those borrowings
are also dealt with in equity. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the
initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

The functional currency of the Company, Dawnrays International Co., Ltd. (“Dawnrays
International”), Dawnrays International Co., Ltd. (“Dawnrays International (HK)") and
Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Limited (“Dawnrays Pharma), is the Hong Kong Dollar.
As at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of these companies are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (RMB) at the exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date and, their income statements are translated at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The exchange differences arising on the translation are taken directly
to a separate component of equity.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates, and sales taxes or
duty.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have passed to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold;

Interest income

Revenue is recognised as interest accrues (using the effective interest rate, that is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset);

Dividend income
Revenue is recognised when the shareholders' right to receive payment has been established.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 35 SR AR P

2.3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at
the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

. where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry-
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

. where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the year when the assets are realised or the liabilities are settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2.3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Taxes (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the period necessary to match the
grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the
grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to the income statement over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by

equal annual instalments.

Retirement benefits schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and charged to the
income statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group's employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the

MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China (the “Mainland
China Subsidiaries”) are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. The contributions are charged to the income statement

as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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2.3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Accommodation benefits
Contributions to an accommodation fund administered by the Public Accumulation Funds
Administration Centre in Mainland China are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's operations.
Eligible participants (the Company's directors, employees of the Group and other eligible
participants) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby eligible participants render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with eligible participants is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined using
a Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model, further details of which are given in note 29. In
valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any performance conditions,
other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company (“market conditions”),
if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase
in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the eligible participants become fully entitled to the award
(the "vesting date"”). The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions
at each balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The income statement expense or credit for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards
where vesting is conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised
is the expense as if the terms had not been modified. An additional expense is recognised
for any modification, which increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the participants as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
entity or the counterparty are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of earnings per share (further details are given in note |3).
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2.3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial assets

Initial recognition

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-
for-sale financial assets. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at
fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way purchases) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term. Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are carried
in the balance sheet at fair value with gains or losses recognised in the income statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Such financial assets are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated
income statement when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well
as through the amortisation process.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity when the Group has the positive intention and ability to
hold to maturity. After initial measurement held-to-maturity investments are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. This method uses an effective interest
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Gains and losses are
recognised in the consolidated income statement when the investments are derecognised
or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process. The Group did not have any
held-to-maturity investments during the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007.
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2.3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Subsequent measurement (Cont'd)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified in any of the preceding three categories. After initial
measurement, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as directly in equity until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss recorded in equity is recognised in the income
statement, or determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative loss recorded in
equity is recognised in the income statement.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The Group determines
the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings,
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss includes financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
income statement. The Group has not designated any financial liabilities as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the amortisation process.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

50 2008 annual (:]:lslgt | Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited

23 FESTBEMRE (&)

®BEE (F)

A (i AR R B
AHHENBEEREAIHEEN EmRIEL
MR EERESEES BTN EX=
BREITEMBEE - MIAFTER - AJHEE
RERRAEFE  ERERBBERRN#R
TR EEZXAERBUEERE  EEET
M Rt A KB RARNFIERFHER - =X
BERRE  WHERTRESLEN R ER
AR A B R AR -

B aE

I R

RRBER G ERIEI - MBABEN I RM
B BARERABRSROMBAR  EXR
B (AER) © 7 5 B 7 1) 1 i 53 5 e 52 B 755
BfE -

MBEBNREAAERR - EERRERA
REKRIERHRAMER

REETE
BB ENREREIURR S

BARELA BB R HERIE
BARERABRSEXRNUBABERENARS A
B m#SE M58 E RN & REREEE QR
ARENRABHAARENTBEEE -

BHABEMAERTRARENMEER - BISE
BURSZRENTMBENERE URZBEDN
MEFEMHAENBENFBRDER - A&
B EEMETARAABIRAZE T AR
BN BRALE -

B REX
RETERE - FFRERREBEREEEAER
PR R I AGTE -

EREWBUAERIGETHRIER - 2EBENFE
RNHER

HEMBEE
RS E —RAORRGRITHRER - AT
HoRRAE  BTARNFEAEARES

REERBENER MU BEERBEGA T
HHE - THFeEINAGHEEARERA



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 85 R AR Y R

2.3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organised financial markets
is determined by reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the
balance sheet date. For investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined
using valuation techniques. Such techniques may include using recent arm'’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of another instrument that is substantially
the same; discounted cash flow analysis and valuation models.

Amortised cost of financial instruments
Amortised cost is computed using the effective interest method less any allowance for
impairment and principal repayment or reduction. The calculation takes into account any
premium or discount on acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group
of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Due from loans and advances to customers

For amounts due from loans and advances to customers carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that
are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount based on the
original effective interest rate of the asset. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group. If, in a subsequent year,
the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is recognised in the income statement.
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2.3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Due from loans and advances to customers (Cont'd)

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence would
include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in the income statement — is removed
from equity and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses on equity investments
are not reversed through the income statement; increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognised directly in equity.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale, impairment is assessed
based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost. Interest continues
to be accrued at the original effective interest rate on the reduced carrying amount of the
asset and is recorded as part of ‘Interest and similar income’. If, in a subsequent year, the
fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the income statement, the
impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

Derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, a new asset is
recognised to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the asset.
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2.3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Derecognition of financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset, is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

When continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including
a cash settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group
may repurchase, except that in the case of a written put option (including a cash settled
option or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair value, the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset
and the option exercise price.

Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or
accumulated impairment losses, if any. When a major inspection is performed, its cost is
recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
the income statement as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset as
follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery and other equipment 5to 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement in
the year the asset is derecognised.

The assets residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each
financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.
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2.3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction during the period of construction. Construction in progress
is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Operating leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of
the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset or assets.

Where the Group is the lessee, operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
in the income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease term.

Land use rights

Land use rights represent prepaid land lease payments under operating leases, which are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following
the initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding
capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is reflected in the
income statement in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets of the Group are assessed to be finite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible assets may be impaired.
The amortisation period and amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life is reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful
life or expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in
the assets are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate,
and treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the income statement in the expense category
consistent with the function of the intangible assets.
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2.3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Intangible assets (Cont'd)

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure on an individual
project is recognised as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate:

O the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available
for use or sale;

O its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset;

. how the asset will generate future economic benefits;

. the availability of resources to complete the asset; and

. the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, a cost model is
applied requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Any expenditure capitalised is amortised using the straight-
line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products not exceeding ten years,
commencing from the date when the products are put into commercial production.

The carrying value of development costs is reviewed for impairment annually during the
period of development.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted
for as follows:

Raw materials Purchase cost on a weighted-average basis;

Finished goods and work in progress Cost of direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads
based on normal operating capacity but

excluding borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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2.3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset
is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit's (CGU) fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset's or cash-generating units' recoverable
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment
loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does
not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. Such a reversal is recognised in income statement.

Cash and short term deposits
Cash and short-term deposits in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand
and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and short-term deposits as defined above.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefit will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the income
statement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted
using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as a finance cost.

56 2008 annual (:]:lslgt | Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited

23 FESTHEME (&

FMBEERME

AEEREREAFHEER T HRBED
R MERBETR  HEREREESFE
TRENR  AEBEEMGFEENTRKE
B BRERBEEEEANRESRETEB IR
HitpERXZREEMEENRERE TR
BENARRSHEREERRSEEEM ([R
SEABEMDNERAEEREQAABEBMHEE
RAEBEFERSEFE  LREANEES
o BAEFREELAEUNREEBRBAE
WE R BERRGE/RE  HEREEER
EAEWEE o AR EERZ AR
FMEFEFFARNRSRENRE - W&
PR R E B 5 S H R ENRTE R %R
BEENBERAR

RERBBREREEEDE - BNRX - KA
HRPERBAIAR -

BEAEASTERTEDRBR A HER
FRIBTBFESRD - MHRZEDR - Al
AEEEGHFEERRSELEMNA KNS
HomANBEEEENT RS EN[ETER
L —RERREBRRHRES - B2 ATRE
ROBEERBETUEE - BEBHEER - UE
NEEREETBBERTEKEHE - T HER
11 38 £ 4F [ 30 488 0 R R R ML JRS R T 2 E Y
BREE (MBI ER) - ZFBRERMERA
R -

REREHER
AERBERANREREREFRBERTRT
BFREARREINHAA=EAXLIKR=EA
COPSRAEC

HRAHRERERME  RERRLEEYE
BEXAEBRNREREHRER -

BiE
HAEEEBERFARERFOEE CEER
HE)  MARZAEEAEEHER (BELE
M) SR - B EES R e LS A el
sHES - RUREREME - EERHERNREXR
FERIE - EEREREENZEBEAN
BRT  BEEEARKRMEE) BEBER
REVE R AR R ETHE - LEAFTRE
B = i [ 1 38 pN Y B TSR R B AR A



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 85 R AR Y R

2.3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, (i) controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control with, the Group; (i) has an interest in
the Company that gives it significant influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint
control over the Group;

(b)  the party is an associate;

(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or its
parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) or (d);
or

(f)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced
by or for which significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group, or of any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate allocation of retained

profits within the equity section of the balance sheets, until they have been approved by

the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association grant the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND

ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in

future periods.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements which has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in

the financial statements:

Development Costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy in note 2.3.
Initial capitalisation of costs is based on management's judgements that technological and
economical feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached

a defined milestone according to an established project management model.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed

below.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses whether there are any indications of impairment for all non-financial
assets at each reporting date. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there

are indications that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

Share-based payments

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference
to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. Estimating
fair value for share-based payment requires determining the most appropriate valuation
model for a grant of equity instruments, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of
the grant. This also requires determining the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model
including the expected life of the option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions

about them. The assumptions and models used are disclosed in note 29.
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2.5. STANDARD ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.5 TEMERRERLHER
The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that have been issued AEBEI AR ZEWBHHRETEAUATERM
but are not yet effective, in these financial statements. 1B R A BB R BT I AR A8 BT B BR B s o 5
Al o
IFRS | and IAS 27 Amendments to IFRS | First-time Adoption of IFRSs and B B B 5 R BT BB PR B 75 s
Amendments IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements ﬁﬁ'J%ﬂ 5 R ERIE 15 B IRERA
— Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly controlled & Et &R B % B 75 3 5 2 Rl e
Entity or Associate ' %275)?% B[R & w2 R 2757
(EFTA) e RB B S RE

—RIBAR - KR

BHEEREE AT

R E A
IFRS 2 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment — Vesting I A B 75 R R e
Conditions and Cancellations ' R 25% AERIEB25% AR B
(ERTA) HERHXN —58
TR R8T
IFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations 2 B B B 5 R E3 i
R E 35
(&&1E3T)
IFRS 8 Operating Segments ! B[R B R R EED
R FE 85
IAS | (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements ' EilCS -] B RERM 2
EALACIED)
IAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs ' BFR & 5+ 22 A PN
2358 (IERD)
IAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 2 g st 2R iR A RSB B TS R
275 (IERT)
IAS 32 and IAS | Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation BB & 5+ 24E R &I B BB & 52 R
Amendments and IAS | Presentation of Financial Statements — Puttable %327);7 %327}ifﬁmﬂlﬂ
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Bt R 25 REREEER
Liquidation ' 15 (IBFTA)  FE1RMBRROZ7
—IEHEMIAR
BERELENEME
IAS 39 Amendment Amendment to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition BB & 5+ 2E R & T B BB & 5+ 2R
and Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items 2 3958 ((BATA) HFI9WeMTIA : R
it -G EREHIEE?
IFRIC-Int I3 Customer Loyalty Programmes 3 I A B 5 R BEABE P
REZE®—
REBE 135
IFRIC-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate ' B B B 5 R FHERERR
BEZEg -
BREE16
IFRIC-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation * B B B 7 P RIBIMEE R
REBZE®- REFE
REBE165%
IFRIC-Int 17 Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners ? B B B 75 R DIRFRESEETHAEA?
REBZEg -
REE17H
IFRIC-Int 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers ? I A B 5 R EFEREE’
REBZES—
REE18

EHEH(RR) ARAD [ 5
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2.5.

STANDARD ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Cont'd)

Apart from the above, the IASB has also issued Improvements to IFRSs* which sets out
amendments to a number of its standards primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies
and clarify wording. Except for the amendment to IFRS 5 which is effective for the annual
periods on or after | July 2009, other amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after | January 2009 although there are separate transitional provisions for each
standard.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | October 2008

. Improvements to IFRSs contains amendments to IFRS 5, IFRS 7, IAS I, IAS 8, IAS 10, IAS 16, IAS 18,
IAS 19, 1AS 20, IAS 23, IAS 27, 1AS 28, IAS 29, IAS 31, IAS 34, IAS 36, IAS 38, IAS 39, IAS 40 and IAS
41.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these new and
revised IFRSs upon initial application. So far, it has concluded that while the adoption of
IFRS 8 and IAS | (Revised) may result in new or amended disclosures and the adoption
of IFRS 3 (Revised), IAS 27 (Revised) may result in changes in accounting policies, these
new and revised IFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in one business segment: the development, manufacture
and sale of medicines, and most of its operations and assets are located in Mainland
China. Therefore, no business segment or geographical segment information is presented.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN 4. WA~ Hitg AR s

WA (REBEZXE) EHEERNBER - &
ST MHERFER -

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the net invoiced value of goods
sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts.

AEBRA - ERARKREITNT :

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gain is as follows:

Group
TEE
2008 2007
—ETNF —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFIT
Revenue A
Sale of goods HEEmM 947,710 919,945
Other income Hiug A
Bank interest income |ITFE A 936 945
Dividend income from BARERABEE
financial assets at fair value Z BB ER
through profit or loss A& BIA 162 68
Foreign exchange differences M ZR 1,692 —
Government grant BUR R 350 50
Tax refund for reinvestment BREEBK 1,247 1,265
Others Hoth 685 690
5,072 3,018
Gain Wz
Gain on disposal of financial HERAREBERA
assets at fair value Bk WBEE
through profit or loss ol — 1,302
5,072 4,320
FINANCE COSTS MBE R
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—ZEN\E —TTLF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREFIT
Interest on bank advances for discounted bills SRITRNIR R E RS 343 —

REHAB(ER)ERAE A 6
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PFRBATER
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBE R B ATEF DM GEA) ToE
HIERETE :
Group
REE
Notes 2008 2007
B eE —EENF —EEAF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T AREFIT
Cost of inventories sold BEFERA 688,288 677,200
Depreciation ne 14 22,827 23,143
Recognition of land use rights * T fE FRRERERR * I5 442 325
Research and development costs: g R BB
Amortisation of intangible assets ** BV EERE ** 17 855 776
Current year expenditure REFXZ T 15,986 17,903
16,841 18,679
Minimum lease payments under REENT 2 RIEED
operating leases:
Buildings BF 2,085 1,773
Auditors’ remuneration ZEETEN & 1,000 780
Employee benefit expense REBAMFEX
(including directors’ remuneration (BREE=ME (FE7))
(note 7)):
Wages and salaries IERF® 54,857 46,525
Equity-settled share option expense VARG A S {1 ey B AR A 7 S 609 864
Retirement costs RIRAA 9 5,672 4,327
Accommodation benefits FE@H 9 2,271 1,532
Other benefits Hip A 8,641 5916
72,050 59,164
Foreign exchange differences, net *** VE S Z5E 5 x> (1,692) (3,815)
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE 5 FOERE 20 — 418
Write-down of inventories FEMRZE I Z5RFE
to net realisable value 2,642 2,463
Impairment of intangible assets *¥*#* BV EERERR **** 17 385 4,166
Fair value losses, net: AR ERRFE
Financial assets at fair value RARERABRERZ
through profit or loss TS EE 1,908 294
Bank interest income SRITASUA (936) (945)
Loss on disposal of items of HEWE - BER
property, plant and equipment REZHBENER 295 1,585
Loss/(gain) on disposal of financial assets HEZEARELABERZ
at fair value through profit or loss B EEEE (W) 276 (1,302)
&3 The recognition of land use rights for the year is included in “Administrative expenses” on the face * I B £ i (E FARETE SR AT A & O FIEI R &9 [1T 0
of the consolidated income statement. BA] -

#%  The amortisation of intangible assets for the year is included in “Other expenses” on the face of the > FRAMEREERETAG GFIEXRE [EE
consolidated income statement. Y-

#*%  The foreign exchange differences, net for the year is included in “Other income” on the face of the *xx o FRHYIE S ERF ARG IR R A [E MY
consolidated income statement. A -

###% - The impairment of intangible assets for the year is included in “Other expenses” on the face of the xxxx R EEREEIEIAS GFERS [
consolidated income statement. B -
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section

7. EEME

BEETHRARABGHIFE 1618 TR EFA

161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: BEZWewT
Group
FEE
2008 2007
—EENF ZEBTAF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R AREEFTT
Fees e 579 408
Other emoluments: H A H B -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBREYAR 1,981 2,482
Equity-settled share option expenses VAR <% f5F ey s AR A 5 <2 141 178
Pension scheme contributions RIRSFHEIHER 52 50
2,174 2,710
2,753 3,118

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were as

(a) BUFBITES
AERBIIFRTEENRSAT :

follows:

2008 2007
—EENEF —ETEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT
Mr. Pan Xue Tian EBHELE 107 I
Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin Dannis FERKE — 2
Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky BELLSE 107 [
Mr. Sik Siu Kwan EEJRISEE 107 109
321 333

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive directors AERTEBNBIIFATESTNEMIE (=T

during the year (2007: Nil).

tFE -
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7.  DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Contd) 7. ESMe (&)
(b)  Executive directors and a non-executive director (b) HITEBR—EFHITES
Salaries,

allowances Employee Pension

and benefits  share option scheme
in kind benefits contributions Total
Fees ;e EH AR A k€ remuneration
wE REWFE HESER s [ 8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR®TR AR®T T AR®TR AR®TR

2008 —EENF
Executive directors: HITEF -
Ms. Li Kei Ling FHIG LT 43 407 —_ 13 463
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RERITS S A4 43 407 — 13 463
Mr. Li Tung Ming FRAESEE 43 407 — 13 463
Mr. Gao Yi mREE 43 760 141 13 957
172 1,981 141 52 2,346
Non-executive director: FHITEF -
Mr. Leung Hong Man REREE 86 — — — 86
258 1,981 141 52 2,432
2007 —ETLF
Executive directors: HITEF -
Ms. Li Kei Ling FHER L — 491 — 12 503
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RRRMIE A — 491 — 12 503
Mr. Li Tung Ming FRAESEE — 491 — 12 503
Mr. Xu Kehan FFREEE
(Resigned on (R=ZTLF
|8 March 2007) =RA+/N\BET) — 130 6 3 139
Mr. Gao Yi BRITAE — 879 172 Il 1,062
— 2,482 178 50 2,710
Non-executive director: FFHITEE
Mr. Leung Hong Man RERSE 75 — — — 75
75 2,482 178 50 2,785
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any FAMBEEETNEXRERETMAHS
remuneration during the year. LRk
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five (2007: five) highest paid employees during the year included two (2007: three)
directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 7 above. Details of the
remuneration of the remaining three (2007: two) non-director, highest paid employees
for the year are as follows:

TUREHES

FREML(ZZEZLF : Af) BoHESEE
“RH(CEELF ZMEF FBRENLEX
MIEE7 - M T = (ZFTLF : —fU) FEERK
BHEENFANTFHAOT

Group

rEE
2008 2007
—EBENE —TT+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBFIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RUREYRG 1,681 1,078
Equity-settled share option expenses VAR A S At B i AR A T S2 97 44
Pension scheme contributions RIRE TR 34 20
1,812 [,142

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

MeeBEN T IIENNFESRESTHE
ITHAZEAT :

Number of employees

EEAH
2008 2007
i —TRLF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 TE 1,000,000 B 3 2

During the year, no share option was granted to any non-director, highest paid employee
in respect of his services to the Group.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND ACCOMODATION BENEFITS

In compliance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF
Ordinance"), the Company and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Limited have participated
in the MPF scheme, a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee,
to provide retirement benefits to its Hong Kong employees. Contributions to the MPF
scheme are made in accordance with the statutory limits prescribed by the MPF Ordinance.

As stipulated by the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") state regulations, the Mainland
China Subsidiaries participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme. All employees
are entitled to an annual pension equal to a fixed proportion of the average basic salary
amount of the geographical area of their last employment at their retirement date. The
Mainland China Subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the local social security
bureau at 20% to 22% (2007: 20% to 22%) of the previous year's average basic salary
amount of the geographical area where the employees are under employment with the
Mainland China Subsidiaries.

The Group has no obligation for the payment of pension benefits beyond the annual
contributions as set out above.
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According to relevant rules and regulations of the PRC, the Mainland China Subsidiaries
and their employees are each required to make contributions to an accommodation fund
at 7% to 12% (2007: 7% to 10%) of the salaries and wages of the employees which is
administered by Public Accumulation Funds Administration Centre. There is no further
obligation on the part of the Group except for such contributions to the accommodation
fund.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had no significant obligation apart from the contributions
as stated above.

TAX

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 3| December 2008
and 2007 are:

10.

RBEFHEBOBRRRNFER - PEAEHEBL
AkFEERESEARBENHFERIENT%
E12% (ZFFLF 7% E10%) [[—BAATE
SEBRLERNERRESMHR - BRZERE
MEFESOHIS  AEEITEEMEE -

R-ZTEZNF+-A=+—8 " BRELlfxk
SN REBWEEMEREMF -

IR

HE-2T/\FR-FFLF+-A=1-8
I EFEB TN EBARBHNT -

Group
&
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT R ARBFT
Current income tax EHFEH
Current income tax charge AR 13,654 10,440
Adjustments in respect of BUBEFEERAEHAEE
current income tax of previous years (45) 153
Deferred income tax (note 27) BRI (Hi7t 27) (24) (213)
Total tax charge for the year KEEHAR AR 13,585 10,380

Pursuant to section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (1999 Revision) of the Cayman Islands,
the Company has obtained an undertaking from the Governor-in-Council that no law
which is enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax to be levied on profits or
income or gain or appreciation shall apply to the Company or its operations. The undertaking
for the Company is for a period of 20 years from 8 October 2002. Accordingly, the
Company is not subject to tax.

Pursuant to the International Business Companies Act, 1984 (“IBC Act”) of the British
Virgin Islands, International Business Companies incorporated pursuant to the IBC Act
enjoy a complete exemption from income tax. This includes an exemption from capital
gains tax, and all forms of withholding tax. Accordingly, Dawnrays International is not
subject to tax.

The Hong Kong subsidiaries are subject to a statutory corporate income tax rate of
16.5% (2007: 17.5%) under the income tax rules and regulations of Hong Kong. No
provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group had no assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2007: Nil).

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law with effective from | January 2008,
the Mainland China Subsidiaries are all subject to income tax at the rate of 25% on their
respective taxable income.

On 21 October 2008, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical””) was qualified as a High-New Technology Enterprise (“HNTE") of Jiangsu
province. As a result, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical is entitled to a concessionary rate
of income tax at 15% for three years commencing | January 2008.
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10. TAX (Contd) 10. BL1E (&)

BMRmETARAR ([HMRIRET]) AE
ELEERNFE R ERETELEMEHM
FORAARFERBIRR)  TERR=FF#
ERRETEMEEMSHE0% > BRBEHRMNR
It IMs /AFEEENFE  AR=_FF/
FIL125% R RGP RBRAEH o

Suzhou Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou Dawnrays Chemical”) is exempted from
corporate income tax of the PRC for the two years starting from the first profitable year
of operation, after setting off losses carried forward, and are entitled to a 50% relief from

corporate income tax of the PRC for the following three years. As Suzhou Dawnrays
Chemical is in its fourth profitable year of operation, it is subject to corporate income tax
of the PRC at a rate of 12.5% in 2008.

RPBABNAEEEHBRRAR-ZENF
B 25% R EHMBEMEH -

All other subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to the corporate income tax rate of
25% in 2008.

BE_ZT)\ER-_TT+LF+-_A=+—8H
1E 4R R IR S S B 500 A € LA AP B AR b Y 3R

A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by
the PRC's domestic tax rate for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 is as

follows: BIGREI RN ¢
Group
KE
2008 2007
—EEBN\F —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT T ARETTT
Accounting profit before income tax BRATE BRI E 5HE T 115,716 111,537
At the PRC's statutory income BRBEEEMERBE 25%
tax rate of 25% (2007: 33%) (ZZZ+F : 33%) 28,929 36,807
Tax effect of profits entitled to tax A ZBUAREE
concession or lower tax rate REMEAET
enacted by local authority BEHE BT E (13,417) (26,043)
Effect on opening deferred BEE MG FNETTHIANZ 2
tax of increase in rates (615) —
Tax credit for purchase of BERBERAEH
domestic equipments (2,750) —
Adjustments in respect of BRRAFEEHMGEH AR
current income tax of previous years (45) 153
Expenses not deductible for tax AR A% 210 217
Effect of temporary ARRGREZENTE
difference not recognised 366 —
Tax losses not recognised AERBIEER 1,021 —
Others EAh (114) (754)
At the effective income tax RERFMEHHE11.74%
rate of |1.74% (2007: 9.31%) (ZZZ+F:931%) 13,585 10,380
Il. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 1. BARREREE AEGEER

BE_ZZN\F+_A=1t—HLAEFEFA
RIERF B AREE R T BEANAR T
REREHEF AR 35,762,000 (ZEZF ¢
AR#27,861,0007T) (Ff5£30(b)) °

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the parent for the year ended 31
December 2008 includes a profit of RMB35,762,000 (2007: RMB27,861,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company (note 30(b)).

REHB(ER)ERAE AN |6
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12.

DIVIDENDS 12. BE
Company
AT
2008 2007
S LN —EELs
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARETT
Interim — HK$0.018 (2007: HK$0.015) ERRRE - RS - 0.0188 T
per ordinary share (ZZ2+5:0.015871) 12,576 11,804
Proposed final — HK$0.040 HRARHBE : 0.040 87T
(2007: HK$0.038) per ordinary share (ZZ2+5:0.038871) 27,477 28,224
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the Company’s BUR 3 A0 R BB TR A5 AR 2 B BRI R 4
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. REBB
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY  13. BAREEREZFAARESR

HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based on the profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based on the profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent divided by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. The weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

bl

SREFRFIRES AT BRARRA AL
ANE BRI R AF OB AT R BARAR (D 2 h0fl
TR -

EERERATIRRGRRNEBERERITEA
RS AN FEFIRR AN F RS BT E BN
ZINETFHRE - BT E B 2 i
BYHBRBEEAEESRERABNNER
ERTEBERE  MEAERTRKEBHRA
EEERMNTRRMBREERERTHNER
s 2 g S35 BB o

TIRBEFESRERRFNRBEREREA
A R B An B b

2008 2007
—zE)nf B
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AR¥EFTT
Earnings BF
Profit attributable to ordinary equity BRAEERESEFAA
holders of the parent FE(EEF] 102,037 101,072
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EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY

13. BAREBRESHFEABLER

HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (Contd) BR (&)
Number of Shares
Ro#HE
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ZTTLF
Thousands Thousands
1z iz
Shares gy
Weighted average number of ordinary RS ESREARRTIZ
shares used in the basic earnings per F 15 E BAAR B
share calculation 791,000 802,039
Effect of dilution — weighted average BEEs 2 — nEFH
number of ordinary shares: T mARALEL -
Share options FER 3,745 4,523
Weighted average number of ordinary MESEREE L I RIR 2 It
shares adjusted for the effect of AR AR B
dilution 794,745 806,562

EHEBH(RER) ARAD [0 6
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I4. PROPERTY,PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W% BERRE
Group
AEE
Machinery
and other
equipment Office Motor
Buildings BN equipment vehicles Total
BgF Hith:k MRAERE RE b
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR AR¥TR

Cost: A
As at | January 2007 R=ZZTTLF—A—H 95,717 198,828 8,327 9,779 312,651
Additions NE 45 3,794 825 VAl 5,405
Acquisition of a subsidiary D)= NG — — 43 — 43
Transferred from construction TEETRER
in progress (note |6) (Kiz% 16) 315 1,375 — — 1,690
Disposals HE — (3,709) (1,208) (273) (5,190)
As at 31 December 2007 R-B2LF
and | January 2008 +=A=t+—-BK
—Z2E\F—-A—H 96,077 200,288 7,987 10,247 314,599
Additions NE 352 6,973 814 637 8,776
Transferred from construction TEETRER
in progress (note 16) (HizE 16) 20,179 20,389 20 — 40,588
Disposals W — (1,741 (248) (208) 2,197)
Exchange realignment ME AR — — (39) — (39)
As at 31 December 2008 RZBENF
+=HA=+—8H 116,608 225,909 8,534 10,676 361,727
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd) 14. Y% BRERRE (B)
Group
EE
Machinery
and other
equipment Office Motor
Buildings BN equipment vehicles Total
gy Hibk MAERE RE et
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBTR AR®TT AR®TR ARBT T
Accumulated depreciation: REHE
As at | January 2007 RZEZ+E-F—H 14,734 47989 4,647 4,540 71910
Provided for the year FNEE 4374 16,001 1,095 1,673 23,143
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEMB AR - — I — I
Disposals e - (2.155) (1,082) (245) (3:482)
As at 3| December 2007 REBRLE
and | January 2008 +=A=+-H
k=28/\F-A-H 19,108 61,835 4671 5968 91,582
Provided for the year FREE 4,394 16,041 I,116 1,276 22827
Disposals HE — (1,182) @13) (187) (1,582)
Exchange realignment X AR — — (35) — (35)
As at 31 December 2008 REBENE
TEEEr=0 23,502 76,694 5,539 7,057 112,792
Net book value: REFE
As at 31 December 2008 RIBENF
+=A=t+-H 93,106 149,215 2,995 3,619 248,935
As at 3| December 2007 RIZELF
+=A=+-H 76969 138,453 3316 4279 223017

EHRHBH(ER)ARAD D T
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

14. W% - BERRE (&)

Company
A
Office
equipment
WAERE
RMB’000
ARBT R
Cost: A -
As at | January 2007 R_ET+F—H—H
and 31 December 2007 R-ZET+F+=-A=+—8H
and | January 2008 k_ZEENF—-HA—H 712
Disposals HeE (14)
Exchange realignment TER R (87)
As at 31 December 2008 R=—Z2BN\F+=A=+—H 611l
Accumulated depreciation: REHTE -
As at | January 2007 R-ZEZLF—HA—H 584
Provided for the year FARE 52
As at 31 December 2007 R-ZBZ2tF+=-A=t+—H
and | January 2008 k=—Z2EN\$-H—H 636
Provided for the year FREE 61
Disposals HeE (14)
Exchange realignment TER R (84)
As at 31 December 2008 R=ZBENF+=A=+—H 599
Net book value: RRERE ¢
As at 31 December 2008 R-BENF+=ZH=t+—H 12
As at 31 December 2007 RZETLF+=_A=+—H 76
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15.

LAND USE RIGHTS AND PREPAYMENTS 15. T fE AR AR
The Group's land use rights represent prepaid land lease payments under operating leases AEEz T AREREEENEN Z L
and their carrying amounts are analysed as follows: HERRERAEINNOT :
Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENF ZTTLF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBFT
Carrying amount at | January N—A—BERHE 23,225 13,204
Additions NE 295 10,346
Recognised during the year FNTER (442) (325)
Carrying amount at 3| December Wt A=+—RKREE 23,078 23,225
The land use rights of the Group are situated in Mainland China and are held under AEEFA 2 Tt ARG P BRI ZH
medium lease terms. HEOFE -
As at 31 December 2008, the Group had paid RMB26,072,000 (2007: RMB26,072,000) RZZBTENGE+ZA=+—0 AEEXFS
for the land use right of a certain piece of land. The land use right certificate application —¥R 432 3 A R#26,072,0005T (Z
was still in progress. The payments were accounted for as prepayments. TTHF : AR¥%26,072,0007T) @ FZLMER
BZHBFEDEETH  ZENFTAEN R
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 16. HEIRE
Group
FEE
2008 2007
—BEBN\F —TTLF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFT ARETT
As at | January m—A—8 10,496 869
Additions NE 83,125 11,317
Transferred to property, plant BAME  BERRE
and equipment (note |4) (Bfat 14) (40,588) (1,690)
As at 3| December W+=ZA=+—H 53,033 10,496

EHAH(ER)ARA R A e
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BREE
Deferred development costs IR IE R BB AN
Group
REE
2008 2007
—EBENF S
Deferred Deferred
development development
cost Software Others Total cost Software Others Total
BRI AR B Hith BE  RERENA LI it Fet]
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARBTT AR¥TR AR¥TR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Cost: 2%
As at | January ®—A—R 21,987 1,393 588 23,968 19,538 82 — 19,620
Additions NE 1,163 352 — 1,515 2,449 [311 — 3,760
Acquisition of a subsidiary ~ WFEHTE 2 A — — — — — — 588 588
As at 3| December W+=A=+-H 23,150 1,745 588 25,483 21,987 1,393 588 23,968
Accumulated amortisation ~ Rit#is5RRfE :
and impairment:
As at | January ®—A—R 9,179 157 — 9,336 4237 21 — 4258
Amortisation provided FREH
for the year 855 159 17 1,131 776 136 — 912
Impairment during the year — FRRE 385 — — 385 4,166 — — 4,166
As at 3| December Wt+t=A=1+-8 10,419 316 17 10,852 9,179 157 — 9,336
Net book value: BRERE :
As at 31 December B+=ZA=+—8 12,731 1,429 471 14,631 12,808 1,236 588 14,632
As at | January R—A—H 12,808 1,236 588 14,632 15,301 6l — 15,362
I8. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RKIE A B M=
Company
AR
2008 2007
ZEENF —ETEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%®T ARBTT
Unlisted shares, at cost IE TR - RAKAS 83,034 88,166
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURFT B A RIFRIA 202,704 200,647
285,738 288,813

The amounts due from subsidiaries of RMB202,704,000 (2007: RMB200,647,000) are
non-interest bearing which, although technically are repayable under the original terms of
the transactions giving rise thereto, have been deferred for a longer term and are therefore
classified as non-current.
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

Nominal value
of issued share/
paid-up capital

18. KRB BRMER (&

MERRFENT

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company

Name EMmRL BT/ NG 2 Principal activities

DR BB EIE—ES: 2 EHERE REH DL FTEXK

Directly held

EERFF

Dawnrays International British Virgin Islands US$100 100% Investment holding
Company Limited RBHARES 100 %7 REER

RitBERBR AR

Indirectly held

GE:FoE-

Dawnrays International Hong Kong HK$200,000 100% Investment holding
Company Limited B 200,000 #7T REER

RinBERROD AR AR

Suzhou Dawnrays Mainland China US$31,333,091 100% Manufacture and sale
Pharmaceutical SIETPNES 31,333,091 %7t of pharmaceutical
Co,, Ltd. # products

BHMRIGHERER AR HERHEBEER

Shanghai Dawnrays Mainland China US$680,000 92% Manufacture and sale
Chemical Co,, Ltd. * LlEpNH 680,000 7T of pharmaceutical

ERmEIARAR? intermediates

SUE R HE R SR

Suzhou Dawnrays Mainland China US$6,000,000 100% Manufacture and sale
Chemical Co., Ltd. # SIETPNES 6,000,000 %7 of pharmaceutical

BMERIETERAR" intermediates

SUERHERENRRE

Dawnrays Pharma Hong Kong HK$500,000 100% Sale of pharmaceutical
(Hong Kong) Limited BB 500,000 # 7T products

Rin# % () AR DA HEBZEEMR

Guangdong Dawnrays Mainland China RMB3,000,000 100% Sale of
Pharmaceutical LlEpN AR 3,000,000 7T pharmaceutical
Co, Ltd. # products

ERRmEXFR AR HEBEER

Dawnrays (Nantong) Mainland China US$10,000,000 100% Manufacture and sale

Pharmaceutical Science

and Technology Co,, Ltd. *

Rim (R iB) 28 ZERHR
BRAA"

T BIARE

10,000,000 =7t

#These subsidiaries were registered under PRC law as foreign-owned enterprises.

of pharmaceutical
intermediates
SLENHEREDHE

* ZEMNE R AT BEEZMBIERE D

-

EEE T AE- IR0 =N 0008 & & [ /5
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19. INVENTORIES 19. #E&
Group
REE
2008 2007
—EEN\F —EELF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARETT
Raw materials (at cost) JRE (AR ANETHE) 21,237 19,207
Work in progress (at cost or FERG (LARCASK Al #IRFEFHE) 90,527 87,584
net realisable value)
Finished goods (at cost or Bk (AR AT IR FEAHE) 47,772 17,644
net realisable value)
159,536 124,435

The amount of write-down of inventories as an expense is RMB2,642,000 (2007:

RMB2,463,000).

20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES

EEBAIIHGEERMBREEAARK
2,642,000t (=TT L4 : AR¥2,463,000

7) ©

20. EWEZ R EHERIE

Group
AEE
2008 2007
—senE —EREE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Trade receivables FEWE R 167,524 146,448
Impairment IE (3,361) (3,361)
164,163 143,087
Notes receivable e = B FRIE 226,878 198,083
391,041 341,170
The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit, except for new customers, BRIEF —RBEHREIN AEEXERE

ERAEREFR S MEIBRFEEH KA
H=@EAR  BUEFHUREESEERE - &
SERZFERHEREERKFA  TREER
ERBPIBRBEERRRERE - S RERE
BT &EHma@iRK - ERNUEMERE
AASKENEKRESFTRSRRETRERS
Aty EeERTANEERR BREZRE
BRBETEHE

where payment in advance is normally required. The credit period is generally for a
period of three months for major customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a
credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's
trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade and notes receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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20. TRADEAND NOTES RECEIVABLES (Contd)

An aged analysis of the trade and notes receivables as at the balance sheet date, based on
the invoice date and net of provisions, is as follows:

20. EWE S REERR (&)

REFAHARNBEER  RNEEANEK
BHREBFANKRRONAT :

Group
rEE
2008 2007
ZEEN\F T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBFT
Trade receivables K E ZRIE
Outstanding balances with ages: IREREC B 2 Y (R R ERER
Within 90 days 90 A A 159,722 136,506
Between 91 and 180 days 91 £ 180 H 2,853 5,463
Between 181 and 270 days 181 £270H 1,217 1,002
Between 271 and 360 days 271 2360 H 120 67
Over one year —FUE 251 49
164,163 143,087
Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFT ARMBT T
Notes receivables eSS
Outstanding balances with ages: RARECE| 5 B R ERTE -
Within 90 days 90 B A 87,359 114,721
Between 91 and 180 days 91 £ 180 H 139,519 83,362
226,878 198,083
The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows: BWE SFENBREREEINT :
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFT ARMBT T
At | January m—A—8 3,361 2,976
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE — 418
Amount written off as uncollectible BT ATk el & 58 — (33)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 3,361 3,361

The above provision for impairment of trade receivables is provided for individually impaired
trade receivables with an aggregated carrying amount of RMB3,36 1,000 (2007: RMB3,36 1,000).
The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers with financial difficulties.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

FlERESHBEARERGEIREERER
AR¥3,361,000C (ZTFTLF : AR¥
3,361,0007T) 9 1@ B B 3 (B fE Wk B 5 3 E &t
12 - ZEERIERERKE P HIEH EE AR
BREZEFAR - ANEEYERZSEHRN
A AR RS R th(E B na s i o

RHWH(RR)ARAD [0 T
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20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (Contd) 20. ERESREBRE (&)
The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered to be impaired is as RAWERENERE SRERESTAT :
follows:
Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENF —TTLHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFT ARBFT
Neither past due nor impaired AR50 HR R I R 159,722 136,506
Less than three month past due B 3 (A A 2,853 5463
Over three months past due B3 A A AL 1,588 1,118
164,163 143,087
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large number of diversified R 780 5 e X 4B DR 1 ) B R IR TS B K Bl B
customers for whom there was no recent history of default. BEANEELNZEREFEM -
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent B EME Y SR E A B RIA T B 5 L A E
customers that have a good track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the BRRTEERBNBURFPER - ERUE
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary K5 RNAREERARBARZSEREDR
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality BEEG EREEERVELRAERNEY M
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any BERABANFER /2D - K& EY FE5E
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances. % 5 A BR T A A AR AR R SR EE AL 5 E A0
SRIEHE ©
21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. BN BEREMERRE
Group Company
rEE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF —EELF —EEN\F —TTEF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREETIT ARMT T ARBFT
Prepayments LN 9,140 3,082 190 155
Deposits and other receivables Be R H A ENTOR 6,517 2,670 — 268
15,657 5,752 190 423
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. B EERB BRI ERE -
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

23.

22. BERRECABERZMBEE

Group Company
K& RAF
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\F —EELF —EEN\F —EELF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT AR¥ T AR¥ETTT
Listed equity investments, FRERIRE -

at market value: RE :

Hong Kong B 3,404 4,888 3,404 4,888
The above equity investments at 31 December 2007 and 2008 were classified as held for R-ET+ER_ZFZENF+_A=+—H "
trading. FRRERESEA/UR S RENMAHR R

= o
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. BERATEEY
Group Company
EME AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—BENF —TELF —EENEF —EEAF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT AR¥ T AR¥ETTT
Cash and bank balances RE RRITHER 38,462 48,205 3,733 2,772
Short term deposits KRR 474 28,638 474 28,319
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRLEEY 38,936 76,843 4,207 31,091

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances and short term deposits of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB3 1,179,000 (2007: RMB44,943,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short
term time deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents
approximate to their fair values.

REER  NEBENLAREIENRS RIRT
IR BREREEARES,179,000T (ZF
TH4F - AR%44,943,0007T) ° A REE I A AT
BElRERAHMEY - A - REPEKEIN
EEGERRGEE  SEAMESEEEAE K
SEEESBFTETINEEFTNRITEAR
BEBABHMER -

RITIF KA R SR ROE B17 SRAO R R ERER - 22
PERFRPRATF—RE=BEARATE  &F
AEBENREFRME @ W IAEE R HE D
TR ERRFE - RITEREFAEHRE
TRER - FERIFNBRTH - REMREFE
BYHNREERIEAAE -

EHAH(ER)ARA D A A
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24. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES 24, ERESRREBENRE
An aged analysis of the trade and notes payables as at the balance sheet date, based on REZHHGS  REFENENEIRENE
the invoice date, is as follows: BRERRINOT
Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENF ZETAF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBFIT
Outstanding balances with ages: RERECE| 5 B R ERTE -
Within 90 days 90 BA 152,170 148,974
Between 91 and 180 days 91 E180H 128,326 97,844
Between 181 and 270 days 181 £270 H 640 213
Between 271 and 360 days 271 =360 H 97 130
Over one year —FENE 195 246
281,428 247,407
Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on 90-day terms. The FER FRIR TG B R — RN+ B IRAR B8
carrying amounts of the trade and notes payables approximate to their fair values. - BNESREBFIEZREEELNTFE
BEEE -
25. BANK ADVANCES FOR DISCOUNTED BILLS 25. |ITHAREBX
Group
AEE
Effective 2008 2007
interest —EENF e
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 RMB'000
BERFIE (%) 28R ARBTT ARBEFT
Bank advances for Upon expiry
discounted bills of the bills
IRITRER IR RK 2.38% to 3.87% FRIEE 24,907 —
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26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

27.

26. HthENRRETEE

Group Company
AREH ARF
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENEF ZETHF —EEN\F ZETAF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARMFIT ARBTT ARBFT
Advances from customers TRUERR 2,044 1,470 — —
Accruals SEE =R 5,839 4,165 738 [,165
Taxes other than corporate BB EEPRISHON
income tax ENTIE 11,439 8,306 — —
Payable for purchases of machinery B RET
and construction of buildings LR BT 12,631 2471 — —
Other payables EAMbRERTR 4,395 6,431 — —
36,348 22,843 738 [,165
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average settlement term of six Hi AR T M ERTEHNEAEED -
months. The carrying amounts of the other payables and accruals approximate to their HtENESREF OB EMEREATE
fair values. EMRE -
DEFERRED TAX 27. EIEBE
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as follows: FRREHAEEZZEHMT :
Deferred tax assets BEEHRBAEE
Group Amortisation Provision Total
TEE ey BHE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T R AR®T R
At | January 2007 R_TZE+F—-A—H 57 598 655
Deferred tax (charged)/credited FARMER
to the income statement (k) ez
during the year (note 10) BEREBIR (K 10) (29) 242 213
Deferred tax assets R-ZEELF+_A=+—H
at 31 December 2007 k—ZTZENF—-A—H
and | January 2008 ZIRIETIE A R R 28 840 868
Deferred tax (charged)/credited FARTER
to the income statement (f0RR) ez
during the year (note 10) BETIR (Hfat 10) (28) 52 24
Deferred tax assets R_ZETN\F+_A=+—H
At 31 December 2008 ZIRERIEEE — 892 892

REHAB(ER)ERAE A e
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28.

SHARE CAPITAL 28.
Shares B 12
2008 2007
—BEN\F —EELEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T AREFIT
Authorised: JERE
10,000,000,000 SHRMAEO0.1 BTH
(2007: 10,000,000,000) @A 10,000,000,000 A%
ordinary shares of HK$0.| each —ZF 44 :10,000,000,000 %) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BBITRER :
778,648,000 (2007: 793,172,000) BREEO.1 A
ordinary shares of HK$0.| each EEA% 778,648,000 % 77,865 79,317
(ZZZ+4 : 793,172,000 f%)
Equivalent to RMB'000 EEARETT 82,964 84,241

During the year, 1,940,000 share options under the Company's share option scheme
were exercised. Accordingly, 1,940,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.| each were issued as a

result of exercise of share options.

The Company repurchased 16,464,000 shares on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited at an aggregate consideration of HK$ | 1,534,080 before expenses. The repurchased
shares were subsequently cancelled. The nominal value of the cancelled shares was transferred

to the capital redemption reserve and the premium payable on the repurchase was charged
against the share premium account. The repurchases were effected by the directors for
the enhancement of the shareholder value in the long term.

82 2008 annual (-:1.)i¢| Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited

R + 1,940,000 R IE AR A 7] HE AR AEE 2
ZEREEEITE - Eitt - 1,940,0008% F AR E
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Contd) 28. BA& (&
A summary of the transactions during the year with reference to the above movements LB EMREY  ARAFREEITRAREEEZD
in the Company's issued share capital is as follows: RPEEWT ¢
Number of Issued Share
shares in issue capital premium
ERTRG BT account Total
=] R4 IR 4% & Ek-
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T
At | January 2007 RZTZETLF—A—H 799,140,000 79914 65,188 145,102
Share options exercised ATV 5,116,000 501 3,203 3714
Share repurchased S ARG (11,084,000) (1,108) 7,122) (8,230)
At 31 December 2007 RN_ZEZELF+_F=+—H
and | January 2008 R=—FTTNF—HA—H 793,172,000 79317 61,269 140,586
Share options exercised AT AR 1,940,000 194 15075 1,369
Share repurchased BRI ARG (16,464,000) (1,646) (9,918) (11,564)
At 31 December 2008 R=—BENFE+=A=+-—H 778,648,000 77,865 52,526 130,391

29.

Details of the Company's share option scheme are included in note 29 to the financial
statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company's directors, independent
non-executive directors, employees of the Group and other eligible participants as defined
under the Scheme. The Scheme was adopted on 21 June 2003, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares currently permitted to be issued upon the exercise of
options under the Scheme is an amount equivalent to 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue upon listing. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible person in the Scheme within any |2-month period is limited to 19 of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

29.

BRAARRBREEZ
R M FE29 ©

HARNR - #IRNH

BRETE

AARFANBERETE ([RH8)) - S&ERY
AEBEBXBRAEHERNAERSEE M
BN EE - FENEER2EERBEAAR

B BUFRNTES  AKEEERFTER
EWEMAERSEE - FER_FTT=FRX

Ao+ —HAER  BESITRHERIET
R Z AR T FAFERR -

» FHEl

BAl - BB ETEBREM T FRITHED
BHE R ARSRERETRREARFTN L
MREEITRME10% © FEEM1218 A #E A
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29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any |2-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 2| days from the date of
offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$10 by each grantee with no other
consideration being payable by the grantee. An option may be exercised in accordance
with the terms of the Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such date on
or after the date on which the option is granted as the Board may determine in granting
the option and expiring at the close of business on such date as the Board may determine
in granting the option but in any event shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant.

The exercise price of share options is determined by the directors, but may not be less
than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares on the
date of offer of the share options; and (i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company's shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer, provided
that the exercise price shall not be less than the nominal value of the ordinary shares of
the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders'
meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the year:

29. BRERE (2

RFPARAER  BHRNTBERRIFEEEM
BB T EREAE SRS BIIFNTESH]
A e AN IREM1 218 A SRR T AR R X
RRREBILIFITE F R EEIRIRE T B
fEf] fE B B i AR 2 R PME AT B A0 B 37T AR
PE0.1% * REMBERENLEREAAF
BORBRERLABNERTE) Ba
5,000,000/ 7T » BIAEAEERR ARG LRER
Rt -

BTREREAZHRENEERREF21ARE
B ARAENBERESEANHEMBA
B EAXMIOOETHREARE -HEEE
EREEREZASHEEAEENAHLEEE
FEERIBRERETN QNS XEHE
REFIE - ATBERY (SR 20 NS BB B R A 5
R+ ) RIRFL AT B MO RRITE B AR -

BRENTEEARESETE @ ETSERNUT
BENKSE (A2 ARONEHBERER
BEBZPTAHAKTE » RIINARRBRHR
SZRE N B HA0 R 822 5 B R 3 A AT R T
BEHE - ETERETNSLIRARR L ERD
[

BREYEETHAATZEREINBREKX
B LEREAER -

VAR %3 % at B 4F AT (68 A 8 A4

2008 2007
—BENE —TEALF

Weighted Weighted

average average

exercise price exercise price

fnfEF13 T

TEE 1I1E(E
HK$ Number HK$ Number
BT of options BT of options
per share BREHE per share RERCHER R
B8R ’000 =214 ‘000
At | January m—A—H 0.639 24,680 0.587 22,500
Granted during the year FAERE 0.718 1,800 0.723 9,600
Exercised during the year FREATE 0.596 (1,940) 0.580 (5,116)
Lapsed during the year FRBEK 0.580 (140) 0.615 (2,304)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 0.649 24,400 0.639 24,680

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised
during the year was HK$0.767 (2007: HK$0.821).
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd) 29. BRFESHE (&)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at that REER  RITENBRETEERTESM
balance sheet date are as follows: R
2008 —B2EBN\F
Exercise price*
TEE™
HK$
Number of options BT
BRERE per share Exercise period
’000 B8R THEHH
1,900 0.630 17-11-2005 to 16-11-2010
10,700 0.580 28-12-2005 to 27-12-2010
400 0.500 05-05-2006 to 04-05-2009
800 0.720 01-09-2007 to 31-08-2012
7,500 0.710 04-04-2008 to 03-04-2013
1,300 0.800 10-07-2008 to 09-07-2013
800 0.740 01-02-2009 to 31-01-2014
1,000 0.700 09-12-2009 to 08-12-2014
24,400
2007 —gEia
Exercise price*
1IfEE*
HK$
Number of options BT
BBEHA per share Exercise period
'000 s 1AM
2,500 0.630 |7-11-2005 to 16-11-2010
12,180 0.580 28-12-2005 to 27-12-2010
400 0.500 05-05-2006 to 04-05-2009
800 0.720 01-09-2007 to 31-08-2012
7,500 0.710 04-04-2008 to 03-04-2013
1,300 0.800 10-07-2008 to 09-07-2013
24,680
9 The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case of rights or bonus issues, or * iaf 3 77 4 IR 3 8 7T AT R 3 7K 26 (B AR 2K (4 3 AL At
other similar changes in the Group's share capital. BLIZE) - RIFERERTTIEER T X BE -
The fair value of the share options granted during the year was HK$255,200 (2007: FRERLBEREN QA ER255,2008 7T (=
HK$1,617,200). ZTTLF ¢ 1,617,20087T) °

REHB(ER)ARAE AN s
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd) 29. BIRFESHE (&)

BTFARAEENERENAAEBDIRETE
RHERE BB - FRHEEEXGR - X
EERE TR G REN - ERERR
REMERNGEERAFTERS - AHEEAS
FETBRORTHEERE - TRIEZIER

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was estimated as at the date of
grant, using a Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. This value is inherently subjective and
uncertain due to the assumptions made and the limitation of the valuation model used.
The following table lists the inputs to the model:

BB A\ BUE :
Date of grant R A 17/11/2004 28/12/2004 5/5/2006 10/1/2007  4/4/2007 10/7/2007  1/2/2008 9/12/2008
Dividend yield (%) fr 8% (%) 6.94 753 8.92 6.05 587 5.14 5.85 627
Expected volatility (%) TEHR (%) 47 46 47 43 43 43 43 39
Historical volatility (%) BEIKIE(%) 47 46 47 43 43 43 43 39
Risk-free interest rate (%) ERBRITRE(%) 276 291 2.90 3.70 405 463 2.20 1.63
Expected life of option (year) FEREBAEFE (F) 6 6 4 6 6 6 6 6

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the past five years
and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,
which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the measurement of fair
value.

The 1,940,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in the issue of [,940,000
ordinary shares of the Company and new share capital of HK$ 194,000 and share premium
of HK$961,200 (before issue expenses), as further detailed in note 28 to the financial
statements.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 24,400,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 3% of the Company’s shares in issue as at
that date. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 24,400,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company, additional share capital of HK$2,440,000 and share premium of
HK$ 13,396,000 (before share issue expenses).

86 2008 annual (:]:lslgt | Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited

BRERAFHNBREREAFENELENE
E o ORBEEBRTTRBREN TN o BHIKIE
REGBERE A BRARRBENERR - HERE
BERDEERER -

A T I AR B 5 A A A BV E
g o

R 1T{EH1,940,00017 B8 A% 4E 5| BUA A 7] 3%
171,940,000/% @A + AR Z<194,0007% 7T
R R& 17342 961,200 7T (RETAR D BATH ) -
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30. RESERVES

(@)

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the current

and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 37 to 38 of the financial statements.

()

(i)

(i)

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between
the aggregate of the nominal value of the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group Reorganisation as set out in note |, over the
nominal value of the Company's shares issued in exchange therefore.

Statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”)

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the articles of association
of the Mainland China subsidiaries, the Mainland China Subsidiaries are each
required to allocate 10% of their profit after tax, as determined in accordance
with the PRC generally accepted accounting principles, to the SSR until this
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of the Mainland China Subsidiaries.
Part of the SSR may be converted to increase paid-up capital, provided that
the remaining balance after the capitalisation is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Exchange fluctuation reserve
The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to record exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.

30. f#&
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30. RESERVES (Contd) 30. f#fE (&

(b) Company

Share Share
premium  Contributed option
Notes account surplus reserve

Wi REEE ARG BRERE
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000
AR®TR ARMTT ARET:R

(b)

RAT

Capital Exchange

redemption fluctuation

reserve reserve Retained
% EX profits Total
BERE  RBRE  REEA @

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTR AR®TR AR¥TR

At | January 2007 RZZT+F—F—H 69,160 100,175 1,902 194 (17,003) 96,562 250,990
Exchange realignment B AR = = = — (23613) — (23613)
Dividend on shares issued for —ZERF+=A=+—H

employee share options BITEMEER

exercised after BRI EAT

31 December 2006 BRAAEIIRS. — — — — — (65) (65)
Equity-settled share option ~ MARRIEZ {F#)

arrangements iR B — — 864 — — — 864
Exercise of share options R R 29 2992 — (558) — — — 2434
Shares repurchased EAE) Gl 28

@l (6782) _ _ 1,055 _ (1,055) (6782)
Profit for the year REEHF Il — — — — — 27,861 27,861
Interim 2007 dividend —ETLERHRE 12 - — _ _ _ (11,804)  (11,804)
Proposed final 2007 BE-TE+E

dividend RERS 12 — — — — — (28224) (28,224)
At 31 December 2007 RZZELHF

+=A=1+—-H 65,370 100,175 2,208 1,249 (40616) 83,275 211,661

Exchange realignment e AR — — — — (17,704) — (17,704)
Dividend on shares issued for —ZZ+F

employee share options +=ZA=1+—H%

exercised after Tl iE S RERE

31 December 2007 PRETTRIDRIAR 2 — — — — — 22) (22)
Equity-settled share DARRHE S <Y

option arrangements Bz = = 609 = = — 609
Exercise of TEEEAE

share options 29 1046 . (195) . - . 85!
Shares repurchased fBER

and cancelled Bl 28 (8732) — — 1,450 — (1,450) (8732)
Profit for the year REF R I = = — = — 35762 35762
Interim 2008 dividend —TT)\F

FHRR S 12 — — — — — (12,576) (12,576)

Proposed final BR-—ZTNF

2008 dividend RERS 12 — — — — — (7477) (27477)

At 31 December 2008 R-BENE
+=A=t+-8 57,684 100,175 2,622

2,699 (58,320) 77512 182,372

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the then consolidated
net assets of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group Reorganisation referred
to in note 30(a), over the nominal value of the Company's shares issued in exchange
thereof.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted which
are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy for share-
based payment transactions in note 2.3 to the financial statements. The amount
will either be transferred to the issued capital account and the share premium
account when the related options are exercised, or be transferred to retained
profits should the related options expire or be forfeited.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 3. REHE S 2HKITA
Group
TEE
Financial assets 2008 2007
B EE —EENE ZEELE
Financial assets Financial assets
at fair value at fair value
through profit through profit
and loss Loans and and loss Loans and
BRAME receivables BRR receivables
STABRER BERK Total FTABEE =594 Total
ZHBEE PR HEm ZEEE e el “EE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥TR AR®T R AR¥TFR ARETT ARETT ARETT

Trade and notes EWE 5 R
receivables SBHIE — 391,041 391,041 — 341,170 341,170
Financial assets included FTATERK
in prepayments, e REAM
deposits and PR 2
other receivables S EE — 6,489 6,489 — 1,409 1,409
Equity investments at fair BRREFA
value through BaEKRZ
profit or loss RAEZE 3,404 — 3,404 4,888 — 4,888
Cash and Rek
cash equivalents REEFEY — 38,936 38,936 — 76,843 76,843
3,404 436,466 439,870 4,888 419,422 424,310
2008 2007
Financial liabilities —EENF ZEELE
BEEaE Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost
RSB E REBHER AT E
ZEHKaRE ZEERE
Trade and notes payables FERE 5 RREHRIE 281,428 247,407
Financial liabilities included T AH AL FER R
in other payables and accruals RE:TBEZHHEE 28,465 12,888
309,893 260,295

HHEH(RR) ARAD [ e
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31

32.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd) 31. REAFBEDZ2HMBITA (&)
Company
AT
Financial assets 2008 2007
BBEE —EBEN\F e
Financial assets Financial assets
at fair value at fair value
through profit through profit
and loss Loans and and loss Loans and
BARE receivables BRRE receivables
SFABRRER =£795 Total FPABER =505 Total
ZEHBEE FEWRE k] ZHBEE FEMRIA G
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARBTT ARBTT ARETTT AREFTT ARETT
Trade receivables W E 5708 — — — — — —
Financial assets included STATERRK - BE
in prepayments, deposits R E AR
and other receivables ZEEE — — — — 269 269
Equity investments at fair BOfEFA
value through BaEKRZ
profit or loss BARE 3,404 — 3,404 4,888 — 4,888
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEED — 4,207 4,207 = 31,091 31,091
3,404 4,207 7611 4,888 31,360 36,248

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

Currently, the PRC government imposes control over foreign currencies. RMB, the official
currency in the PRC, is not freely convertible. Enterprises operating in the PRC can enter
into exchange transactions through the People’s Bank of China or other authorised financial
institutions. Payments for imported materials or services and remittance of earnings outside
of the PRC are subject to the availability of foreign currencies which depends on the
foreign currency denominated earnings of the enterprises, or must be arranged through
the People's Bank of China or other authorised financial institutions. Approval for exchanges
at the People’s Bank of China or other authorised financial institutions is granted to
enterprises in the PRC for valid reasons such as purchases of imported materials and
remittance of earnings. While conversion of RMB to Hong Kong dollars or other foreign
currencies can generally be effected at the People’s Bank of China or other authorised
financial institutions, there is no guarantee that it can be affected at all times.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)

The Group does not have any significant investment outside of Mainland China. However,
the Group has transaction currency exposures. This exposure arises from sales of the
Group's subsidiaries denominated in currencies other than the Group's functional currency.
Approximately 8% of the Group's sales for the year ended 3| December 2008 (2007:
9%) are denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the Group.
Upon receipt of currency other than the functional currency, the Group sells them to the
banks immediately.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign
currency exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit
before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

32.

THEAREEERRYEE (B)

AEBPN PRI ETAEARE - R
i AEEDEERSEERR - 5 /BREKK
B AARE B A BIRRERN B AR AR EET 88
BRI EBETZHE - HEZZTZENF
+TZA=+—BLLFE  AEEHN8RZIHE
(ZBTLF : 9%) NAAEENREEE SN2
EEEE - RIRBID BB LNz B - A
EESHHEREERE TRITULR A

TRITEFARBTRRERBTE2ER
T AREOBRBAEHEIKERRRAR
BB GBE (R EEAERE EOAT
E2D) -

Increase/decrease in Effect on profit

foreign currency rate before tax
SRR HERBLAT
3@ TH Rz R
RMB’000
AR®TR

2008 —EENF
If RMB strengthens against US dollar MARBRETIE +5% (3,712)
If RMB weakens against US dollar M AR¥EH TR E -5% 3,712
Increase/decrease in Effect on profit
foreign currency rate before tax
SN TE R HERTLAT
£33,/ TH w2 R
RMB'000
ARBFT

2007 —TEALF
If RMB strengthens against US dollar i NR ¥ H e AHE +5% (4,054)
If RMB weakens against US dollar M AR H TR E -5% 4,054

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's
policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivables and balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group’s exposure to bad debt is not significant.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, which
comprise cash and short term deposits, other receivables and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, the Group's exposure to credit risk arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties, there is no
requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
trade receivables is disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND POLICIES (Contd)  32. 2 RlEAKREEBEERYER (£
Liquidity risk REBESERE
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning AEEEBARACEUERBDESTE TR &
tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets REEEROER - WTASERENBT
(e.g. trade receivables) and projected cash flows from operations. ARMBEE (WERKRE SR NEIHE AR
KEREEBHEARSTE -
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the balance sheet date, based FEERBEESNREANIAENRNEE B Y
on the contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows: BABZHHABGALT -
Group
e |
2008
ZZENF
3 to less than
Less than 12 months I to Over
On demand 3 months ZEIR 5 years 5 years Total
RER HSR=MA +=f8A —-Z5f RENE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBT ARBTR ARBT ARBTR
Bank advances for discounted bills  $R{TEEE 2 iE# — 12,960 11,947 — — 24,907
Trade and notes payables ENESREEHE 2,066 192,637 86,725 — — 281,428
Other payables LG ANEN 28,465 — — — — 28,465
30,531 205,597 98,672 — — 334,800
2007
R
3 to less than
Less than 12 months I'to Over
On demand 3 months =EPR 5 years 5 years Total
RER SR=(ER +={8A —Z1F AFE Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBFT ARBTT ARBFT ARBTT
Trade and notes payables [ENE S REEHR 590 94,604 152213 — — 247407
Other payables HiENR 12,888 — — — — 12,888
13,478 94,604 152,213 — — 260,295

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to safeguard the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 3| December 2008 and 3| December 2007.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)

Capital management (Cont'd)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by the total
capital plus net debt. The net debt includes, bank advances for discounted bills, trade and
notes payables, other payables and accruals, less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes
equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The gearing ratios as at the balance

sheet dates were as follows:

32. TRIEMEEBBERYE (&)

BERER ()

AEERBEABBLREREEARER - M
ARBBELERTFABKRNEERIMNFAEZ
MMEE - FREBERITMREERN &
NEZRREFE  EMENRREARE
YHBFRREEREEEY - EAREIARE
BIFAARGEDS  NEERAZERABLE

W
Group
£E
2008 2007
—EENEF e
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AREFT
Bank advances for discounted bills RITAEIR IR 24,907 —
Trade and notes payables BN E SR EEFIA 281,428 247,407
Other payables and accruals HittENRREAE 36,348 22,843
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReRBLEED (38,936) (76,843)
Net debt FEE 303,747 193,407
Equity attributable to equity AR
holders of the parent FA NG ER 628,541 578,352
Capital and net debt BRRFAE 932,288 771,759
Gearing ratio BARBENLE 33% 25%
33. COMMITMENTS 33. A&¥E
(a) Operating lease commitments (a) REHEEERE
The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating lease arrangements. AEERBEEHELHEABE TR
Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to six years. M- PEAENBEHRNF—EX
F2mE e
At 31 December 2008, the Group and the Company had total future minimum BE_ZZENF+-_A=+—H &K
lease rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: B RADBRBIATHEELHEONA
BARRENKERERREL|MAT :
Group Company
FEE NG|
2008 2007 2008 2007
—ZEBN\F —ETLF —EENF —TTLF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFT ARBTR ARKETT
Within one year —&FR 1,368 2,143 — —
After one year but no more —FRED
than five years ZRAFE 916 1,727 — —
2,284 3,870 — —

RHHB(RR)ARAD A0 |



Notes to the Financial Statements B
o FTE

33. COMMITMENTS (Cont'd) 32. 2RIEAMEEEERYEE (B)
(b) Capital commitments (b) BEAERE
Group Company
EE AAF
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\F ZTTHF —EENF —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBFT ARBFR ARBFIT
Contracted, but not provided for: EHFRREFSE K
Plant and machinery R K e 2E 54,990 11,872 — —
Authorised, but not contracted for: B - BRETA
Plant and machinery B e e 2S 58,380 91,987 — —
113,370 103,859 — =
34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 34. BEZXRS
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: FEBETEEBEAESMS ¢
2008 2007
—BEN\F —TTLF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBFT
Short-term employee benefits Hih e HilE B2 F 3,682 3,892
Post-employment benefits RIKRABF] 73 71
Share-based payments LARRED RER A 5 161 222
Total compensation paid to FTEERAER
key management personnel ARt ] 3,916 4,185
Further details of the directors’ emoluments are included in note 7 to the financial statements. BEEMe A BHNMBRRMGET -
35. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 35. MM ERMALE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors MBEBRRENR _ZETNF=A_+BEE=S
on 26 March 2009. BHERREELT
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Five-Year Financial Summary

LFEMBEERE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority interests of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial statements and restated/

reclassified as appropriate, is set out below.

UTAASERNBERAMRER 2 EE  EE &
BERIBERESHE - JLHRHEEELAMERIS

BRUBEHEE ZEYEHMHH -

Year ended 3| December

BE+t-A=+—HLFE

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EEN\E —ETHE ZETNE —TTHE —TTmE
RESULTS ES | RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTF ARBFIT AR¥ETTT AR¥ETFTT AR¥ETTT
(Restated)
(&7))
Revenue WA 947,710 919,945 788,797 734,002 584,758
Cost of sales SHEKA (691,047) (680,443) (604,788) (518,769) (392,081)
Gross profit EH 256,663 239,502 184,009 2157233 192,677
Other income and gain EA Rz 5,072 4,320 2,955 1,959 1,956
Selling and distribution costs HERDHER (79,395) (69,218) (53,669) (54,230) (59,910)
Administrative expenses THER (43,796) (41,117) (36,400) (38,597) (37.172)
Other expenses Hih&EHM (22,485) (21,950) (26,590) (18214) (14,859)
Finance costs MISER (343) — (976) (202) —
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AT A 115716 111,537 69,329 105,949 82,692
Tax HiIA (13,585) (10,380) (3451) (245) (6,225)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 102,131 101,157 65,878 105,704 76,467
Attributable to: AT S IEFE(S ¢
Equity holders of the parent [SYNCIL 35352 DN 102,037 101,072 65,781 105,646 76,451
Minority interest DER RS 94 85 97 58 16
102,131 101,157 65,878 105,704 76,467
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EE - 8ER
MINORITY INTERESTS DER RS
TOTAL ASSETS mEE 975,215 851,398 758,337 745,053 687,083
TOTAL LIABILITIES was (346,002) (272,392) (245,290) (255,996) (274,896)
MINORITY INTEREST LERRER (672) (654) (790) (743) (716)
628,541 578,352 512,257 488,314 411,471
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Information for Shareholders

'#H

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMEBRS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 6 May 2009 to
Friday, 8 May 2009 (both days inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered and effected. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all transfers of shares of the
Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates and the appropriate share transfer
forms must be lodged with the Company’s Registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited, at
26/F Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:00p.m. on Tuesday, 5
May 2009.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2009 AGM will be held on Friday, 8 May 2009. Details of the 2009 AGM are set out in the
notice of AGM with constitutes part of the circular to Shareholders sent together with this
annual report.

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

2008 AGM 9 May 2008

Announcement of 2008 interim results 21 August 2008

Announcement of 2008 annual results 26 March 2009

2009 AGM 8 May 2009

DIVIDENDS

2008 Interim dividend HK$0.018 per share

Payment date for 2008 interim dividend |7 September 2008

Proposed 2008 final dividend HK$0.040 per share
Ex-dividend date for 2008 final dividend 4 May 2009
Book closing dates for 2008 final dividend 6-8 May 2009

Payment date for proposed 2008 final dividend on or about 14 May 2009
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Suites 3212-13, Shell Tower, Times Square, 1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.
BRREBE B H —REBRESRRARE3212-13F

22 Tianling Road, Wuzhong Economic Development District, Suzhou, Jiangsu, PRC.
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www.dawnrays.com
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